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          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDING

          2                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Good morning,

          3  everyone.  I am Erik Martin Dilan.  I'm the Chair of

          4  the Housing and Buildings Committee.  Today the

          5  Committee will conduct hearings on several bills.

          6                 On the agenda today is proposed Intro

          7  No. 4-A, a bill in relation to the installation of

          8  sprinkler systems in student housing, sponsored by

          9  my colleague, Tony Avella.

         10                 Intro. 34-A, in relation to

         11  increasing fines for illegal conversions from

         12  industrial to residential uses.  That's sponsored by

         13  Council Member Reyna.

         14                 Intro. 550-A, in relation to the

         15  inspection cycles for exterior walls, and that's

         16  sponsored by my colleague, Council Member Dan

         17  Garodnick.

         18                 We also have proposed Intro 578-A,

         19  which is the Building Code that's back on the

         20  agenda.

         21                 Each of these bills is very different

         22  but important to the City of New York, which is why

         23  the Committee has decided to hear testimony on all

         24  of them today.

         25                 Intro 4-A would mandate that student
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          2  housing have fully functional sprinkler systems.

          3                 Intro 34-A, again, would increase

          4  penalties to illegally converting buildings approved

          5  for manufacturing to residential uses.  The members

          6  of the Council are concerned that such illegal

          7  conversions increase the costs of manufacturing and

          8  industrial businesses by limiting these businesses

          9  to expand in New York City and potentially affecting

         10  500,000 workers who earn wages and benefits by

         11  working for these manufacturers.

         12                 In a different vein, Intro 550-A

         13  would require the Commissioner of the Department of

         14  Buildings to establish a staggered inspection cycle

         15  system for buildings required to inspect their

         16  facades under Section 27- 129 of the Building Code.

         17                 At the last hearing, Intro 570-A on

         18  June 13th, the Committee heard testimony relating to

         19  new safety provisions, savings to construction costs

         20  and other updates.  The bill before us today was

         21  amended from the original version as follows:

         22                 Eliminating the restrictions on

         23  exterior insulation finishing systems, or EIFS,

         24  which are not found in the current Building Code;

         25                 Retaining the integrity of the
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          2  Department of Small Business Services to conduct

          3  inspections at our waterfronts;

          4                 Eliminating language similar to Intro

          5  550, which is on today's agenda, that would have

          6  staggered the inspections of facades pursuant to

          7  Local Law 11 of 1998.  It also eliminates similar

          8  language to Intro 34, which is before this Committee

          9  this morning, which would have created new

         10  violations for conversions of manufacturing

         11  properties to residential uses.

         12                 The last amendment to the Building

         13  Code was made to Appendix H to eliminate a new

         14  requirement for alteration permits for flexible

         15  vinyl display signs.

         16                 Today we expect to hear testimony

         17  from some of those outstanding questions from the

         18  last hearing and potentially environmental impact,

         19  if any, as well as testimony on the proposed

         20  changes.

         21                 Again, if anyone in the audience, as

         22  the Sergeant at- Arms stated earlier, wishes to

         23  testify, they should please see the Sergeant- at-

         24  Arms to fill out an appearance card.  At this time,

         25  I'm going to turn to the two bill sponsors that are
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          2  here.  I'll do it in alphabetical order, which means

          3  that Mr. Avella, who is a member of the Committee,

          4  will go first, and he'll be followed by Council

          5  Member Garodnick.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  Thank you,

          7  Mr. Chair. First, I'd like to thank you for giving

          8  me a moment to speak about this very important

          9  public safety bill.

         10                 As some of you may recall, I

         11  originally introduced this legislation in 2005 with

         12  the goal of requiring the installation of fire

         13  sprinklers in every student housing unit, including

         14  off- campus housing.

         15                 Following an initial public hearing

         16  in the fall of 2005, I listened to legitimate

         17  concerns raised by major universities and colleges

         18  throughout the City about various aspects of the

         19  bill.  As a result of those discussions, I have

         20  agreed to amendments that I think represent a fair

         21  compromise between the financial concerns of these

         22  institutions and the necessity for this important

         23  safety measure for students who live in dormitory

         24  housing.

         25                 Proposed Intro 4-A will require
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          2  sprinklers in all student housing units occupied by

          3  students under the age of 22.  In addition, there

          4  are specific provisions, which will apply solely to

          5  housing units leased by the institutions, so that

          6  only those leased properties where 75 percent of the

          7  building is used for student housing for students

          8  under the age of 22 will be subject to the sprinkler

          9  requirement.  Finally, the bill will establish a

         10  ten- year period for existing dormitory housing

         11  units to be retrofitted with fire sprinklers.

         12                 While sprinklers cannot prevent

         13  fires, a 2004 study performed by the National

         14  Institute of Standards and Technology, demonstrated

         15  that sprinkler systems could significantly increase

         16  a person's chance of survival in a dormitory fire.

         17  We should do everything within our power as a City

         18  inhabited by thousands of students living in

         19  dormitory housing, to make sure that they are

         20  provided with this vital, life- saving protection.

         21                 I look forward to hearing from all of

         22  those who have come here to testify today and a

         23  straightforward and honest discourse about any

         24  issues the Administration or the colleges and the

         25  universities may still have in relation to this
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          2  bill.

          3                 Two things I wanted to bring up in

          4  addition to my statement.  I'm just going to read

          5  one little paragraph from a FEMA study that was done

          6  in August, 2002 about fire safety on student

          7  housing.  In the last paragraph, in the summary of

          8  the report, it reads:

          9                  "Serious fires in student housing

         10  wreck almost unimaginable devastation and

         11  disruption.  This potential warrants careful

         12  consideration of fire safety options.  In

         13  particular, automatic sprinkler systems should be

         14  considered as a viable option.  They have

         15  established an impressive record of preventing

         16  residential fire catastrophes, particularly in the

         17  hospitality industry.  While technology is developed

         18  specifically for residential applications, automatic

         19  sprinkler systems are now common place in hotels and

         20  motels where they afford the traveling public with a

         21  high level of fire safety.  College students deserve

         22  the same high level of protection, and their parents

         23  expect it."

         24                 One final comment, those of you who

         25  may have seen today's New York Times about an
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          2  incident where nine firefighters died in a blaze in

          3  South Carolina on, I believe June 19th.  What is the

          4  date of the fire?  Monday.  The Fire Chief, if I can

          5  read the small type, said that a bill that the State

          6  Legislature in South Carolina would have passed two

          7  years ago would have ensured that older buildings,

          8  including the one where the firefighters died, would

          9  have been passed.  Let us not have a situation in

         10  this City where we're looking back and saying, gee,

         11  if we would have passed this legislation for student

         12  dormitory housing, we wouldn't have a situation like

         13  this.

         14                 This is sort of a call to arms.

         15  South Carolina could have passed the legislation.

         16  It may not have prevented the fire, but it may have

         17  prevented the nine firefighters from dying. Let's

         18  not have that same situation in this City.  Thank

         19  you, Mr. Chair.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Thank you,

         21  Council Member Avella.  Council Member Garodnick?

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK:  Thank you,

         23  Chairman Dilan and Members of the Housing and

         24  Buildings Committee.  I'm very glad to be here.  I

         25  am not a member of this Committee, but I'm pleased
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          2  that you're hearing Intro 550-A, which is a very

          3  common sense piece of legislation, which deals with

          4  some of the intricacies of the building facade rules

          5  in the City of New York.

          6                 Today, the rules are that every

          7  building facade needs to be inspected within five

          8  years, every five years. Buildings that were built

          9  after 1982 are on a natural, staggering cycle based

         10  on the date on which the building was built, so they

         11  get inspected if they were built in 1984.  They're

         12  inspected again in 1989 and 1994, et cetera.  But

         13  for buildings built before 1982, they are all in

         14  lock- step with one another, so they all have to

         15  have their inspections on exactly the same year

         16                 What that does, of course, it creates

         17  a significant pressure, significant competition for

         18  the materials, the professionals, the equipment, the

         19  sidewalk sheds, everything that you need to be able

         20  to accomplish a facade inspection.  That drives up

         21  costs unnecessarily, and it makes things very, very

         22  difficult for building owners, residents, et cetera.

         23                 What this bill does is that it

         24  requires that the Department of Buildings, by no

         25  later than January 1, 2009, establish by rule,
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          2  staggered inspection cycles for all of the buildings

          3  that are covered by the facade inspection rule.

          4  This is a very simple and common sense piece of

          5  legislation, and I'm very glad that it is on this

          6  Committee's agenda.  I thank the Chairman for that,

          7  and I thank those of you who are here today to

          8  support it, and I appreciate a moment to say a few

          9  words.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Thank you,

         11  Council Member Garodnick. We've also been joined by

         12  some of the Members of the Committee.  To my

         13  immediate left, we have Council Member Rosie Mendez

         14  of Manhattan.  To my far right, I have Council

         15  Member Jackson of Manhattan, and just being seated

         16  is the Minority Leader of the City Council, Council

         17  Member Jimmy Oddo.  I also see Council Member

         18  Comrie, who has joined us in the back of the room.

         19                 I also want to take this time to

         20  personally thank the Committee staff, who I believe

         21  was up 'til about 12 o'clock working on all these

         22  items before us today.  I just want to give a

         23  special note of thanks to all of you who were here

         24  late last night.

         25                 Again, before we get to the
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          2  Department of Buildings, if anyone wants to fill out

          3  an appearance card, just please state which

          4  introduction number that you want to speak in favor

          5  or in opposition to when you do fill out your

          6  appearance card at that time.

          7                 At this time, I'd like to turn it

          8  over to the Department of Buildings.  With us we

          9  have Phyllis Arnold, who is their legal counsel, and

         10  I guess you can take the liberty to have the members

         11  of the Department of Buildings team introduce

         12  themselves before your testimony.

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ARNOLD:  I'd be

         14  happy to.  Good morning, Chairperson Dilan, Members

         15  of the Committee.  As the Chair noted, I'm Phyllis

         16  Arnold.  I'm Deputy Commissioner for Legal Affairs

         17  and Chief Code Counsel, New York City Department of

         18  Buildings.  I'm joined by three of my colleagues

         19  here today to testify on four bills before you,

         20  including the New York City new construction codes.

         21                 On my left is Helen Gitelson, the

         22  Executive Director of Code Relations for the

         23  Department, who will be addressing 578-A. On my far

         24  right is Benjamin Jones, Assistant Commissioner of

         25  the Model Code Program who will be with us in the
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          2  event there are questions.  To my immediate right,

          3  Fatma Amer, Deputy Commissioner for Technical

          4  Affairs and Chief Code Engineer at the Department.

          5                 I will address in my remarks three

          6  introductions other than the new construction codes,

          7  other than 578A.

          8                 Intro Number 34 regarding illegal

          9  residential conversions in manufacturing zoning

         10  districts, Number 550-A regarding the filing

         11  schedule for reports of facade inspections, and

         12  Number 4-A concerning sprinklering student housing.

         13                 I will note, if I may, that the

         14  Department's understanding on Intro 34 is that the

         15  bill before the Committee today was the original

         16  Intro No. 34, not 34-A.  Hence, my written comments

         17  address Intro No. 34.  I will tell you now that they

         18  pertain equally to the amended version of the bill,

         19  34A.

         20                 With respect to that bill, Intro 34-A

         21  proposes to amend the Administrative Code to create

         22  a new infraction and increased penalties for illegal

         23  residential conversion of buildings approved for

         24  manufacturing use.  It's a response to the

         25  proliferation of such conversions in a way that's
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          2  threatened the stability of the manufacturing sector

          3  of the City's economy.

          4                 The Department supports this bill.

          5  We believe the enactment of this prohibition with

          6  the daily penalties authorized by the bill, will add

          7  a tool to our enforcement arsenal that will help us

          8  combat the residential conversion of manufacturing

          9  buildings.  By helping to make such conversions

         10  unprofitable, the proposed amendment seems properly

         11  aimed at the critical incentive for the occupancy

         12  pattern it covers.  We thus support its passage.

         13                 Intro 550-A proposes to amend the

         14  Administrative Code to direct the Department to

         15  promulgate rules no later than January 1, 2009

         16  establishing staggered inspection cycles for facade

         17  inspections.

         18                 Again, the Department supports this

         19  concept.  Under current law, facade inspection

         20  reports are due roughly every five years on a cycle

         21  that results in a real crunch to hire the

         22  professionals required to get the inspections done

         23  and to secure the necessary equipment, such as

         24  sidewalk sheds, to make sure there is adequate

         25  protection for pedestrians.  This bill addresses
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          2  that crunch, and we thus support it.

          3                 I'll turn now, if I may, to Intro

          4  4-A.  By contrast, although we and the educational

          5  universities generally support the concept of

          6  sprinklering student housing, the Department cannot

          7  support Intro 4-A.  This bill proposes to amend the

          8  Administrative Code to require the sprinklering of

          9  student housing both prospectively and

         10  retroactively.  The bill distinguishes between

         11  buildings that are owned or controlled by an

         12  educational institution and used for student housing

         13  and those in which such an institution leases space

         14  for student housing.  In each case, the bill

         15  requires both that new student housing be

         16  sprinklered and that existing student housing be

         17  sprinklered within ten years.

         18                 Because the bill is highly

         19  problematic and inconsistent with the Department's

         20  approach to the issues of sprinklers in student

         21  housing, we respectfully oppose it.

         22                 As a threshold matter, the bill's

         23  definitions make its provisions capable of being

         24  circumvented.  The sprinkler requirement would apply

         25  to portions of buildings leased to a school for a
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          2  period of at least four years to house students when

          3  at least 75 percent of the building's units are

          4  occupied by students under the age of 22.  It would

          5  be far too easy to evade this requirement by

          6  limiting leases to just under four years, or just

          7  under 75 percent of a building's units.  And the age

          8  provision poses intractable enforcement challenges.

          9  The leasehold provisions of Intro 4-A thus may be

         10  practically meaningless.

         11                 The prospective provisions of the

         12  bill as applied to both institutionally controlled

         13  buildings and leased units, are not adequate, we

         14  believe, to address the fire safety needs of student

         15  residents and are inconsistent with the Department's

         16  approach to this problem, as reflected in the

         17  proposed new construction codes.

         18                 First, the new codes create

         19  protections for newly constructed student housing

         20  that are more comprehensive than those here

         21  proposed.  We've created an occupancy called student

         22  departments that's a function of the new definitions

         23  of dwelling unit and family.  We have classified it

         24  like apartments generally, which means that every

         25  unit used as a student department will be fully
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          2  sprinklered.

          3                 The new codes provide protections

          4  beyond sprinklers. Classic dormitory housing, that

          5  is without kitchens in the units, will be classified

          6  like hotels.  In addition to the sprinklers, that

          7  means these occupancies will be required to have all

          8  the bells and whistles that are required in such

          9  transient occupancies, including manual and

         10  automatic fire alarms, both inside and outside the

         11  unit, smoke detectors within the units, and

         12  notification mechanisms.

         13                 Second, student apartments.  Where a

         14  building's dominant use is student apartments, the

         15  occupancies will be treated like a classic dormitory

         16  and have all the protections I just described.

         17                 Finally, in the lease type situation,

         18  if a building contains more than 15 student

         19  departments, under the new codes it must have, in

         20  addition to sprinklers, manual fire alarms in public

         21  corridors and in student-related uses such as rec

         22  rooms, lounges and laundries.  These buildings will

         23  also have automatic fire alarms in public corridors,

         24  in areas with student related uses and inside

         25  certain mechanical spaces.  They will also have
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          2  smoke alarms in all student apartment units.

          3                 The proposed new construction codes

          4  thus address regulation of fire safety in student

          5  occupancies more comprehensively than Intro 4-A.

          6  The retroactive provisions of Intro 4-A are even

          7  more troublesome.  They not only suffer from the

          8  same deficiencies as the prospective ones, but they

          9  threaten to undercut an ongoing and proven process

         10  for producing meaningful code change.             We

         11  do not by any means claim a monopoly on this type of

         12  dialogue, but we recognize that retrofitting

         13  existing buildings is a costly proposition no matter

         14  what the particular provision. As a result, the

         15  Department has given over to its model code program

         16  the overall task of developing an existing building

         17  code to cover building alterations.  Student

         18  occupancies is one of the many issues we will there

         19  address.

         20                 We have consciously made the decision

         21  to separate code development for new versus existing

         22  buildings.  In proposing the construction codes for

         23  new construction this session, the Department

         24  determined generally to allow existing buildings to

         25  comply with the '68 code as a first step in
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          2  transitioning from the '68 code to a new set of

          3  standards for all buildings.

          4                 Once the codes regarding new

          5  construction are in place, we will turn to the

          6  development of an existing building code for the

          7  entire City.  The process of developing this code

          8  for existing buildings will reflect the same

          9  committee- based consensus building approach we use

         10  to develop the codes for new construction.         We

         11  expect to use the next two to three years to bring

         12  all stakeholders to the table to work out

         13  methodically how we can successfully achieve the

         14  desired result.  Obviously, the educational

         15  institutions will be a critical part of that process

         16  on the sprinklering and on other issues.

         17                 Indeed, we began those discussions

         18  with the higher education institutions over a year

         19  ago, recognizing that the matter of retrofitting for

         20  sprinklers is a particularly costly but important

         21  item.  These discussions can and will address any

         22  appropriate interim fire protection measures.

         23                 Intro 4-A undercuts that ongoing

         24  process.  By doing so, it threatens to impose a set

         25  of provisions on these institutions that they simply
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          2  cannot live with as a practical matter.  And it

          3  threatens the credibility of a process that has

          4  served the City well by delivering a new electrical

          5  code in 2001 with periodic updates since then, and

          6  by this year delivering the first comprehensive

          7  revision of our Building Code in 40 years.

          8                 Because of its shortcomings and its

          9  less than comprehensive approach to the issue of

         10  sprinklering student housing, the Department

         11  respectfully opposes Intro 4-A and urges the

         12  Committee to reject it.  Thank you for hearing my

         13  testimony.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Thank you, Ms.

         15  Arnold and just for clarity on the agenda items, if

         16  I stated earlier that Intro 34-A was on the agenda,

         17  it's not.  It's just Intro 34, not 34-A, so I think

         18  you were testifying to the correct item on today's

         19  agenda, which is Intro 34.

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ARNOLD:  Thank

         21  you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  I'm going to hold

         23  my questions until last.  I have very few questions.

         24    I've addressed most of my items in the first

         25  hearing.  At this point, if any of my colleagues
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          2  have any questions at this time, I'll let them go.

          3  Council Member Avella will be first.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  Thank you,

          5  Mr. Chair.  I guess I obviously have a number of

          6  questions relating specifically to the bill that I

          7  proposed.

          8                 When I first introduced this bill, it

          9  was before the City started working on the new model

         10  code.  Agency came and testified at that time.  It

         11  may have been you.  I honestly don't remember, and

         12  basically came up with a number of issues.  Since

         13  then, myself, my staff and the Committee staff have

         14  been meeting with the universities, and I assume the

         15  agency at some point, to address those issues.  I

         16  personally find it fascinating that some of the

         17  things that you're opposing the bill were not

         18  mentioned at the last hearing, and that you're sort

         19  of combining your testimony with the fact that the

         20  universities support your position, yet some of the

         21  amendments we put in the bill were put in the bill

         22  specifically at the request of the universities.

         23                 So I'm receiving sort of different

         24  signals, and that concerns me.  Because here's a

         25  bill where we're trying to work together to improve
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          2  student housing.  Yet, whether it's the agency or

          3  the universities, it has become increasingly

          4  difficult to get a straight answer.

          5                 To be perfectly honest, I'm a little

          6  disappointed in the negativity of your testimony.

          7  Rather than saying, well, here's what we think how

          8  the bill should be improved as opposed to we can't

          9  support this, this is wrong, this is wrong.

         10                 Why not work together to make the

         11  bill something that we can do?  I understand that

         12  the sprinkler for new construction is going to be in

         13  the new code.  And you alluded to the fact that the

         14  model code program and the people that we're working

         15  with, and you're working with, will be looking at

         16  retrofitting the old buildings.  I appreciate the

         17  fact that you put it in your testimony that you

         18  estimate two to three years.  How long did it take

         19  you to come up with the model code?  How many years

         20  is that?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ARNOLD:  Four.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  Four.  So

         23  you're being extremely optimistic when you say two

         24  to three.  Why not do this bill now in terms of the

         25  retrofitting part at least, so that we start to work
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          2  on the existing old buildings.  Then if the new

          3  model code comes up with something later on, two if

          4  you're being optimistic.  If we're following the

          5  existing schedule of four years, at least we will

          6  have started down the road to improve the situation.

          7    Again, remember the New York Times article I just

          8  mentioned today.  I don't think any of us want to be

          9  in a situation where a fire occurs and say, gee, why

         10  didn't we do that legislation a couple of years ago?

         11    What would be the harm?  If we did something now,

         12  something that we could all agree on now, and then

         13  with the model code, if it has be changed,

         14  strengthened, amended, whatever, do it then as well.

         15

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ARNOLD:  Council

         17  Member, I think I outlined in my testimony why we

         18  think the bill falls short even if it were in place

         19  beforehand, both in terms of its scope and in terms

         20  of the process.

         21                 If I may address some of the issues

         22  you've raised, obviously, when we were here before

         23  you, we were in the middle of a process or beginning

         24  a process that we hadn't yet fully fleshed out with

         25  all of our stakeholders and hadn't successfully
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          2  completed, and today we have.  I think we have a

          3  great deal of confidence in both the product the

          4  process has produced and in the process itself.

          5                 Second, when it comes to the

          6  retroactive provisions, I believe there will be

          7  testimony today from the university community that

          8  can address some of the questions that are really

          9  best directed to them.  I think what we've suggested

         10  to you in the testimony is that the scope of our

         11  approach is really radically different, and to set

         12  the universities down a path of planning and capital

         13  management in one direction, only to turn again two

         14  years later into another, may be a real problem for

         15  them.

         16                 Finally, as was the case with the new

         17  construction codes, obviously the Council is

         18  certainly our partner in the process of continuing

         19  to develop codes for the City of New York, including

         20  the existing building code.  So I don't by any means

         21  mean to convey a tone of negativity or pessimism.  I

         22  have every reason to think that all stakeholders at

         23  the table pursuing the process, including the

         24  Council, will be able to yield a result that all of

         25  the educational institutions can live with.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  I'll hold my

          3  questions for other people who are going to testify,

          4  Mr. Chair.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  What we're going

          6  to do at this time, Council Member Avella, is we're

          7  going allow questions on Intros 34, 550 and Intro 4.

          8    Then we'll close the questioning on this portion

          9  and allow the Department to continue the rest of the

         10  testimony on the Building Code, which may include

         11  environmental review, so if you have questions, you

         12  should do so now.

         13                 So with that, if any of my colleagues

         14  have any questions on this, then I'll give it back

         15  to the Department of Buildings, so they can continue

         16  their testimony on the construction code, and it can

         17  include any testimony on CEQR at this time.  I think

         18  what we just did was we closed the questioning on

         19  Intros 34, 550 and Intro 4, and I understand you

         20  have further testimony?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ARNOLD:  Yes, we

         22  do.  We're going to switch seats right now.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Okay.  I thought

         24  you were looking to leave.  That's why I wanted to

         25  make sure.
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ARNOLD:  No, sir.

          3

          4                 MS. GITELSON:  Good morning,

          5  Chairperson Dilan and members of the Committee on

          6  Housing and Buildings. My name is Helen Gitelson,

          7  Executive Director for Code Relations at the

          8  Department of Buildings.  I am the principal manager

          9  of the Department's environmental review of the

         10  proposed legislation Intro 578-A before you today.

         11                 As Phyllis has already indicated, I

         12  am joined here at the table by Fatma Amer, Phyllis

         13  Arnold and Benjamin Jones.  I am also joined by the

         14  Department's project managers, architects,

         15  engineers, lawyers and other experts from our Model

         16  Code team.

         17                 Thank you for this opportunity to

         18  testify regarding the environmental assessment for

         19  Intro 578-A, the proposed new New York City

         20  Construction Codes.  Along with the Council, our

         21  co-lead agency, we have conducted a careful and

         22  thoughtful analysis, and I am pleased to share with

         23  you our process and the conclusion it produced that

         24  enactment of the proposed legislation before you

         25  will not have any significant adverse environmental

                                                            28

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDING

          2  impacts.

          3                 The City Environmental Quality

          4  Review, OR CEQR, is a process by which agencies of

          5  the City of New York review proposed discretionary

          6  actions for the purpose of identifying the effects

          7  those actions may have on the environment.  As a

          8  discretionary action, development of new

          9  construction codes for New York City is subject to

         10  CEQR.  An analysis of a proposed action pursuant to

         11  CEQR compares the future without the proposed

         12  action, also known as the baseline condition, to the

         13  future with the proposed action and assesses that

         14  difference to determine if it will result in

         15  significant adverse impacts.

         16                 In this instance, the baseline

         17  condition assumes that construction, development and

         18  building alteration continue to be regulated by the

         19  current New York City Building Code, reference

         20  standards and associated policy and procedure

         21  notices, agency directives, agency memoranda, and

         22  agency rules.  The future with a proposed action

         23  assumes that Intro 578-A is approved and that future

         24  construction of new development is regulated by the

         25  new construction codes.
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          2                 Additionally, both the baseline

          3  condition and the future with the proposed action

          4  assume that all other City, state and federal laws,

          5  rules and regulations are in effect and unchanged.

          6                 Development in New York City is

          7  controlled primarily by two laws, the New York City

          8  Zoning Resolution, which regulates building size,

          9  population density and land use through zoning, and

         10  the New York City Building Code, which sets minimum

         11  standards for and regulates how buildings and

         12  structures must be constructed.

         13                 A developer may build a structure as

         14  of right if the Department is satisfied that the

         15  structure complies with the provisions of both the

         16  zoning resolution and the Building Code. Once a

         17  developer files plans with the Department that

         18  demonstrate such compliance, the Department issues a

         19  building permit pursuant to which construction may

         20  begin.

         21                 Approval of the proposed action would

         22  result in the adoption of new construction codes

         23  under which construction of new buildings would be

         24  regulated.  The proposed action does not require

         25  zoning changes or involve a specific development
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          2  site or a specific construction project.

          3  Furthermore, the proposed action does not change or

          4  otherwise affect other applicable city, state or

          5  federal regulations that govern construction

          6  activities, including but not limited to the New

          7  York City Noise Code, the New York State Energy

          8  Conservation Construction Code and Occupational

          9  Safety and Health Administration's Construction

         10  Safety Regulations.

         11                 The Department conducted a

         12  comprehensive assessment of the bill before you.

         13  The first step subjected every section and every

         14  subsection in every chapter in each of the proposed

         15  codes to a screening assessment utilizing the

         16  assessment and impact criteria consistent with the

         17  CEQR technical manual, which is the guidance

         18  document used by City agencies.  That analysis was

         19  designed to identify and thus eliminate from further

         20  review those sections whose changes would not exceed

         21  impact thresholds in any of the impact areas

         22  described in the manual.  Most of the sections

         23  reviewed fell into that category.

         24                 This screening assessment identified

         25  the remaining sections as those where further
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          2  assessment and/or analyses were required in order to

          3  determine whether the changes proposed in each would

          4  exceed impact thresholds.  In addition to the

          5  considerations outlined in the CEQR technical

          6  manual, and because of the unique type of action

          7  under review, the environmental assessment also

          8  considered the following:

          9                 For land use, zoning and public

         10  policy, because of the nature and purpose of the

         11  construction codes, consideration of public safety

         12  was included when considering impacts of the

         13  proposed action on public policy.

         14                 For socioeconomic conditions,

         15  socioeconomics under CEQR is not related to cost

         16  benefit.  Rather, it is related to potential effects

         17  on an industry or changes to a cluster of

         18  concentrated uses that would affect the character of

         19  a neighborhood.  Questions relevant to the CEQR

         20  assessment of socioeconomic conditions include, for

         21  example, does a particular proposed code revision

         22  have the potential to change existing installation,

         23  operational or demolition processes in a way that

         24  could adversely affect a specific industry as whole?

         25    For example, does it have the potential to phase
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          2  out certain types of specialized workers?

          3                 And would a proposed code revision

          4  affect an existing occupancy group in a way that

          5  could pose a hardship for certain users that could

          6  result in a change to the character of a

          7  neighborhood.  For example, could compliance with

          8  the new code affect the potential viability of a new

          9  restaurant or retail use among an established strip

         10  whose character is defined by such businesses?

         11                 Examples of this would include the

         12  lighting retailers along the Bowery or restaurants

         13  along Restaurant Row along 47th Street.

         14                 For urban design and visual

         15  resources, it is relevant to consider whether the

         16  proposed code revisions to the required materials or

         17  installation procedures change the visual context of

         18  a neighborhood.

         19                 For air quality, it is relevant to

         20  consider whether the proposed revisions involve

         21  installation or demolition processes that could

         22  potentially emit air pollutants exceeding regulatory

         23  limits.

         24                 For noise, it is relevant to consider

         25  whether the proposed code revisions involve use of

                                                            33

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDING

          2  new materials that would significantly decrease the

          3  current attenuation requirements for interior

          4  ambient noise levels.

          5                 For construction impacts, it is

          6  relevant to consider whether the proposed code

          7  revisions result in changes to existing installation

          8  or demolition activities that could affect

          9  construction schedule, delivery, procedures, noise

         10  levels or sidewalk closures.

         11                 Not just one, not just two, but an

         12  entire team of experts met to review as a group

         13  every section, every subsection in every chapter in

         14  each of the proposed codes.  The screening

         15  assessment team included Department CEQR staff,

         16  senior level Department architects and engineers

         17  responsible for drafting the text, and documentation

         18  staff responsible for summarizing and recording the

         19  assessment results on spreadsheets.

         20                 In addition, we retained the services

         21  of a leading environmental consulting firm to assess

         22  in the screening assessment and analyses.

         23                 The Department developed a uniform

         24  set of assessment options in order to ensure

         25  consistency among reviewers and sections when
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          2  conducting the screening.  These options identified

          3  if further work was needed in order to make a

          4  determination or to explain why there was no adverse

          5  impact.  Spreadsheets were used to record the

          6  results of all the assessments.  These sheets

          7  reflected the life of every proposed code section

          8  under CEQR review.

          9                 The CEQR screenings produced an

         10  unanticipated but welcomed by- product.  From time

         11  to time during the course of the screening

         12  assessment, inconsistencies or errors in the text

         13  were identified.  These were noted, the text was

         14  revised and then re assessed and the results were

         15  then recorded on the spreadsheets. Occasionally, at

         16  the time the screening assessment of a chapter was

         17  being conducted, the text of one section or issue

         18  may not have been finalized.  This was also noted.

         19  When the text was finalized, it was then submitted

         20  to the original CEQR assessment team to conduct

         21  screening of the finalized or revised text.  All

         22  changes to assessed text were re- examined to ensure

         23  that the initial determination was still appropriate

         24  and valid.

         25                 Sections or subsections that required
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          2  further work to assess the potential for adverse

          3  environmental impacts were subject to planning or

          4  scoping meetings in which staff developed a plan for

          5  the additional analyses and assessments.  The

          6  complexity or magnitude of work effort varied

          7  greatly depending on the issue of concern.

          8                 Examples of these work items included

          9  comparison of current city and federal requirements

         10  with the proposed action regarding van accessible

         11  parking to determine if the proposed codes would

         12  potentially impact compliance with minimum parking

         13  requirements, particularly for constrained sites;

         14                 Applying tabular limits with other

         15  requirements, limitations and allowances, comparing

         16  the resulting construction classifications in

         17  relation to the height or area of buildings under

         18  the current and proposed codes;

         19                 Comparison of current and proposed

         20  codes' minimum requirements concerning structure

         21  borne and air borne sound transmission; and

         22                 Comparison of current and proposed

         23  codes' minimum stairwidth requirements.

         24                 This analysis also included

         25  consideration of the potential for environmental
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          2  impacts of adoption or rejection of a text amendment

          3  to the zoning resolution that, if adopted, would

          4  exempt the additional required stair width from the

          5  calculation of zoning floor area in high- rise

          6  residential occupancies and thus offset any

          7  reduction in floor area resulting from the proposed

          8  code change.

          9                 In addition to assessing specific

         10  changes between the current New York City Building

         11  Code and sections of the proposed construction

         12  codes, adoption of the proposed codes will result in

         13  changes of a more systemic nature, or that derived

         14  from more than one particular section of the text.

         15                 The Department reviewed these kinds

         16  of proposed changes independently.  They included

         17  changes in occupancy classifications, changes in

         18  construction type classifications, changes in height

         19  and area limitations, changes in accessibility

         20  requirements, changes in stair tread and riser

         21  requirements, changes in sprinkler requirements,

         22  changes in approving materials for use in the City,

         23  updated national standards, and the use of net

         24  compared to gross square feet when calculating

         25  occupant loads.
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          2                 In addition to the CEQR assessments

          3  described above, we also reviewed the proposed

          4  codes' consistency with the City's Waterfront

          5  Revitalization Program.  Although the codes were not

          6  in and of themselves spur any new development, they

          7  would apply citywide, including structures and/or

          8  sites located within the boundaries of the coastal

          9  zone.

         10                 The Department has examined the

         11  proposed action by analyzing all of its components

         12  singly and in combination.  The provisions were

         13  carefully reviewed with respect to the potential to

         14  result in significant adverse impacts.  The results

         15  of the assessment indicated that implementation of

         16  the proposed action would not result in significant

         17  adverse environmental impacts.

         18                 Undertaking this CEQR review of the

         19  proposed New York City Construction Codes has been

         20  one of the more challenging tasks I faced in 20

         21  years of conducting environmental assessments for

         22  city agencies.  This includes CEQR reviews for

         23  actions proposed by the City Council, DEP, HPD and

         24  DCAS.

         25                 Because the proposed action does not
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          2  require zoning changes or involve a specific

          3  development site or a specific construction project,

          4  but consists of construction standards that may be

          5  applied in a variety of complex combinations, we

          6  have had to apply CEQR requirements in a way that

          7  respects and accounts for these possibilities.  With

          8  the help of an extraordinarily talented staff, we

          9  have comprehensively taken the required hard look at

         10  the potential environmental consequences of the

         11  proposed action and are satisfied that it will not

         12  result in any significant adverse environmental

         13  impacts.

         14                 Once again, thank you for holding

         15  this hearing and allowing me to testify.  We would

         16  be happy to answer any questions.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Okay, again, at

         18  this time, I'm going to open it up to my colleagues.

         19    There are no questions on CEQR.  If not, we'd like

         20  to thank the Department for coming in this morning,

         21  and I guess we look forward to discussing these

         22  items over the next few days between now and the

         23  next hearing.  Thank you.

         24                 Okay, the first panel to come up will

         25  be Mr. Stephen Varone, and he's coming to speak in
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          2  favor of Intro 550-A.  Then next is Mary Ann

          3  Rothman, also in favor of 550-A.  We've also been

          4  joined by Council Member Diana Reyna of Brooklyn.

          5                 MR. VARONE:  Good morning.  Thank you

          6  to the Council for allowing me to speak this

          7  morning.  My name is Stephen Varone. I am President

          8  of Rand Engineering and Architecture.  We are 75

          9  person engineering and architectural firm in New

         10  York City, and I'm here to speak in support of

         11  proposed 550A.

         12                 My firm has been performing Local Law

         13  1080 and Local Law 1198 inspections over the past 20

         14  years in excess of 2,000 of these inspections, so

         15  we've had a good view of how the law has impacted

         16  the City.

         17                 There's no question that it has been

         18  a very good law for the safety of pedestrians and

         19  for the preservation and improvement of the City's

         20  architectural fabric.  The reason that 550-A is

         21  being proposed, in my opinion, is because to a

         22  certain extent, particularly with Local Law 1198,

         23  the law has been too effective in that we have so

         24  much work going on simultaneously that it's just

         25  overwhelming the industry.
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          2                 You have a situation of boom bust

          3  where we have to have thousands of inspections done

          4  to meet a deadline every five years.  Now with the

          5  passage of Local Law 1198, owners are no longer

          6  allowed to carry repair items from one cycle to the

          7  next, so they're all mandated to make repairs on any

          8  items that we found in a previous report.  The

          9  result being that the demand is outstripping the

         10  supply of quality contractors to do the work,

         11  sidewalk shed installations, qualified engineers and

         12  architects to design the repair programs that need

         13  to be done, and some cases the finances of building

         14  owners who find themselves with dozens of buildings

         15  at one time requiring repairs simultaneously.

         16                 I don't think it matters how the

         17  staggering takes place.  That's not important as

         18  long as there's a way that was designed in order to

         19  have the buildings more or less one- fifth of the

         20  buildings with a deadline in each filing year.  We

         21  have some more complicating factors that cause

         22  concern with the current system in that with the

         23  passage of Local Law 1198, any conditions found in

         24  the sixth cycle inspection that were not repaired

         25  from the fifth cycle were immediately downgraded to
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          2  an unsafe status, with no distinction being made

          3  between those items and items that might be a true,

          4  immediate danger to the public.  So that's confused

          5  the concept of what an unsafe condition truly is.  I

          6  know that's not what this bill addresses, but by

          7  staggering the inspections and allowing everyone to

          8  deal with just one- fifth of the buildings at a time

          9  each year, it allows greater focus and emphasis and

         10  understanding of each individual report to take

         11  place.

         12                 For example, not casting any

         13  aspersions on the Buildings Department, because

         14  they're working incredibly hard processing

         15  everything they have to process, but so many reports

         16  were filed at the very last minute this time,

         17  particularly because of the new law, Local Law 1198

         18  not allowing owners to carry conditions from one

         19  report to another, that we filed reports in February

         20  that we haven't received a response on yet.  So if

         21  we reduce the number of reports being filed, it

         22  allows the Buildings Department to process them in a

         23  more rational manner, and it allows us all to deal

         24  with the reports and those repair processes in a

         25  more timely manner.
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          2                 We also have a condition now where,

          3  one of the reasons people say the City is safer

          4  sometimes, they cynically say because every other

          5  building has a sidewalk shed.  So that's, number

          6  one, because all the reports have the same deadline,

          7  so when they were designated as unsafe, they had to

          8  install sheds.  Number two, if we're waiting for

          9  quality contractors to be available, the sheds have

         10  to remain there while the repairs are being planned

         11  and implemented.  So again, it's an unsightly thing

         12  that we have all over the City, sometimes for more

         13  time than we need to have it there.

         14                 I do have concern also about the

         15  quality of the work that's being done because we now

         16  have owners in general are much more aware of,

         17  acknowledging, concerned with and have the funds to

         18  properly restore their buildings, as opposed to what

         19  we had when Local Law 10 was first passed where

         20  building owners, in some cases they respond to us

         21  just to strip decorative elements off buildings. The

         22  approach has been much more to repair these

         23  buildings properly.           The problem is, if you

         24  don't have enough qualified craftsmen to do the

         25  work, or you don't have enough qualified engineers
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          2  and architects to specify what needs to be done,

          3  that hurts the process.  If you're dealing with,

          4  again, a deadline where all the buildings have the

          5  same, exact deadline, well, then what happens,

          6  reality takes hold, and you get a lower quality

          7  contractor to do the work and the quality of that

          8  restoration work suffers as a result.

          9                 One other point I wanted to make is

         10  that the industry itself is hampered by the fact

         11  that these boom bust cycles mean that you have a

         12  great demand for inspections, you have a great

         13  demand for repair, and then you have these off years

         14  where there isn't as much repair going on, there

         15  aren't as many inspections required.  So it's

         16  difficult for engineering and architectural firms

         17  that specialize in this area to mature in their

         18  growth as businesses.  It's also difficult for

         19  contractors to stabilize their businesses with the

         20  continuity of quality craftsmen, so they tend to go

         21  into a lay off or hire lower quality subcontractors,

         22  et cetera.

         23                 So by having a law that staggers the

         24  inspections, I think it will help mature the entire

         25  industry and allow the end result greater public
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          2  safety, better work being done, more reasonable

          3  prices because there won't be these crushes, and the

          4  end result, I think, is a win- win for everyone, and

          5  that's why I'm here speaking about it.  Thank you

          6  very much for your time.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Thank you.

          8                 MS. ROTHMAN:  Good morning, Chairman

          9  Dilan and Members of the Committee.  My name is Mary

         10  Ann Rothman.  I'm the Executive Director of the

         11  Council of New York Cooperatives and Condominiums,

         12  which is a membership organization for more than

         13  2,300 housing cooperatives and condominiums located

         14  throughout the five boroughs of New York City and

         15  beyond.

         16                 For three decades, we've provided

         17  education, information and advocacy to our members

         18  and have tried to bring their needs to your

         19  attention.

         20                 I didn't realize that we were

         21  discussing the model building code today, and I

         22  would like to take just a second to add my support

         23  to the passage of Intro 578-A.  I was a very, very

         24  small part of the very, very big Committee- based

         25  consensus building approach that the Buildings
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          2  Department used in pulling together this impressive

          3  model code, and I do encourage you to pass the code.

          4                 But I'm here today to speak in strong

          5  support of proposed Intro 550-A, much as my

          6  colleague has just done.  It will authorize the

          7  Department of Buildings to spread across time

          8  compliance with Local Law 11 of 1998, rather than

          9  forcing all affected buildings to file at the same

         10  time once every five years.             This

         11  important initiative will greatly improve the

         12  ability of my member coops and condos to comply with

         13  the law while still obtaining work and materials of

         14  high quality.  This will be so simply because

         15  everyone will no longer be scrambling for the same

         16  services at the same time.  With one- fifth of all

         17  buildings required to file a Local Law 11 report

         18  each year, architects and engineers, contractors and

         19  suppliers will no longer have to cope with periods

         20  of overwhelming demand followed by periods of

         21  relative drought, which occur under the present

         22  system.

         23                 Assured of a steady stream of

         24  clients, contractors will be able to train and

         25  maintain a better qualified staff rather than
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          2  filling in at busy times with unskilled temporary

          3  laborers. The demand for sidewalk shed scaffolding,

          4  custom replacement bricks, terra cotta, synthetic

          5  replications, decorative stone works, on and on will

          6  also be spread more evenly over time, so that

          7  materials will be more readily available, and prices

          8  could even be relatively reasonable.

          9                 Finally, the Department of Buildings

         10  itself will be better able to deploy staff in timely

         11  review of Local Law 11 filings rather than being

         12  inundated with filings every five years and digging

         13  slowly out of the backlog.

         14                 I applaud this important improvement

         15  that Council Member Garodnick and his colleagues

         16  have proposed for the enforcement of facade safety

         17  in our City.  I urge the City Council to vote

         18  proposed Intro 550-A into law.  Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Thank you.  Do

         20  any of my colleagues have questions for this panel?

         21  If not, I'd like to thank you and we'll call up the

         22  next panel.  That concludes the public testimony, I

         23  believe, on Intro 550A.

         24                 Next we have Mr. Sal Matteoli.  He's

         25  here to speak on Intro 578-A, Mr. Jonathan Humble,
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          2  also on 578-A, Mr. Gary Higbee on 578-A also, and it

          3  looks like Theresa Scavo, also on 578-A.  If you

          4  have any testimony, please hand it to the Sergeant-

          5  at- Arms, so he can distribute it to the Committee

          6  Members.

          7                 MS. SCAVO:  Good morning, Chairman

          8  Dilan, Members of the City Council Housing and

          9  Buildings Committee.  I am Theresa Scavo,

         10  Chairperson of Community Board 15 in Brooklyn.

         11                 As per the City Charter, the

         12  jurisdiction of the waterfront, whether it be for

         13  development, operation, maintenance or regulation,

         14  lies in the hands of the Department of Small

         15  Business Services.  The Commissioner is given the

         16  duty to oversee 571 miles of our City's waterfront.

         17  The Dockmaster Unit, which is part of the Department

         18  of Small Business Services, is responsible for

         19  carrying out this task.  The unit is comprised of

         20  several devoted individuals who worked feverishly to

         21  inspect and maintain the integrity of our coastline.

         22

         23                 My community is a waterfront area

         24  comprising Sheepshead Bay, Garritsen Beach, Plumb

         25  Beach and Kingsborough Beach.  Recently, several
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          2  problems have arisen along the waterfront.  In

          3  Sheepshead Bay we have eroding bulkheads.  In

          4  Garritsen Beach there is also a bulkhead problem and

          5  a myriad of sunken vessels.  On Plumb beach, as well

          6  as Kingsborough Beach, there are sand bars forming,

          7  which are narrowing the boat channels. I am far from

          8  being an expert on bulkheads or dredging, but it was

          9  my pleasure to contact the Dockmaster's Unit at

         10  Small Business for help.

         11                 Once I realized the unit existed, I

         12  have reached out innumerable times for help in my

         13  community.  Mr. Frank Carnesi is extremely

         14  knowledgeable and goes above and beyond to help find

         15  a solution to a problem.  His unit runs like a well-

         16  oiled machine.

         17                 I am here today to ask the question

         18  if it is not broke, why fix it?  Why move the

         19  Dockmaster's Unit from the umbrella of Small

         20  Business Services to the Department of Buildings?

         21  This unit functions undaunted in its present

         22  location.  We are all aware of the problems that

         23  plague the Buildings Department, and the chain of

         24  command from plan inspectors to field inspectors.

         25  Where does this unit fit in?  Inspecting a building
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          2  foundation is far from inspecting a bulkhead.  This

          3  is a specialized unit that enforces City codes on

          4  our waterfront and is unencumbered by the

          5  bureaucratic red tape.  Please leave the

          6  Dockmaster's Unit where it is and help keep our

          7  waterfront safe.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Thank you.

          9                 MR. HIGBEE:  Chairman Dilan, Members

         10  of the Committee, I'm Gary Higbee speaking in

         11  support of Intro 578-A on behalf of the Steel

         12  Institute of New York and the Ornamental Metal

         13  Institute of New York, organizations whose members

         14  are contractors engaged in the erection of

         15  structural steel and ornamental metals throughout

         16  the five boroughs.

         17                 Members of the Institutes contribute

         18  to the vitality of the City by annually employing

         19  some 4,000 structural and ornamental iron workers.

         20  Their work is showcased in the City's famous

         21  skyline, its stadiums, its transportation centers,

         22  and is evident every day throughout the five

         23  boroughs at building projects seemingly going on in

         24  every corner.

         25                 My remarks are to request that the
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          2  Council pass without delay Intro 578-A, which

          3  continues the initiative of replacing the City's

          4  present construction code with one based on the

          5  International Building Code.  The bill contains

          6  requirements that directly impact our industry

          7  specifically to the extent that the implementation

          8  of this bill is timely, it will facilitate the use

          9  of modern materials, design formulas and methods of

         10  construction, to the advantage of builders and

         11  ultimately building occupants.

         12                 Failure to pass Intro 578-A with the

         13  amendment will only delay this essential code

         14  modernization in New York City and prevent the

         15  building construction industry from taking advantage

         16  of the material innovations that were afforded to

         17  jurisdictions elsewhere in the state and, in fact,

         18  across the country.  Adoption of the code and

         19  continuing modernization is as important to the

         20  regulatory streamlining as the noteworthy efforts of

         21  the Department of Buildings with respect to the

         22  administering of permits and inspections.

         23                 The development of this bill

         24  represents a significant effort and intense personal

         25  commitment by not only the City but more than 400
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          2  industry leaders and technical experts representing

          3  design, construction, labor, real estate, fire

          4  service and City agency stakeholders who are called

          5  upon to help adapt a model building code to unique

          6  City conditions.

          7                 As a consequence, the bill enjoys

          8  broad support among stakeholders in the City's

          9  vigorous and highly regarded construction industry,

         10  from developers and community groups that start the

         11  ball rolling, to designers and builders that get the

         12  shovel in the ground and help turn aspirations into

         13  reality.

         14                 Like other groups, the steel

         15  construction industry did not find a code

         16  incorporating all of the provisions it believes

         17  would benefit designers and builders.  But what it

         18  did find was a department and a process willing to

         19  fairly respond to its principal concerns.  We are

         20  hopeful this process will be ongoing at a time when

         21  the nation's design and construction industry, its

         22  product manufacturers and enforcement community are

         23  increasingly familiar with a format and content of

         24  the IBC, and with other jurisdictions in the

         25  surrounding northeast region, using or about to
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          2  using the IBC, including the adjacent counties of

          3  Nassau, Suffolk and Westchester.

          4                 Adopting the IBC represents an

          5  extraordinary opportunity to modernize our

          6  construction requirements, advance building safety

          7  and simplify the regulatory process.  I therefore

          8  request that you support Intro 578-A.  Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Thank you.

         10                 MR. HUMBLE:  Members, Chairman, I am

         11  Jonathan Humble, Regional Director for the American

         12  Iron and Steel Institute, an institute that's

         13  located in Washington, D.C. that represents about 75

         14  percent of the steel producers in the U.S. and North

         15  America, meaning Canada and Mexico also.

         16                 We're writing to announce our support

         17  for this proposal to integrate and upgrade the

         18  Building Code of the City of New York in this Intro

         19  578-A.  The occasion here is momentous.  We believe

         20  it's very positive, and an approach for the City of

         21  New York to do this, as it potentially presents an

         22  opportunity for the City of New York to see

         23  tremendous growth.

         24                 This proposal also represents the

         25  next logical step in the ongoing efforts by the
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          2  Department of Buildings to make more efficient and

          3  cost effective building codes.  As a result, we

          4  therefore encourage the Members of the Council to

          5  favorably represent 578-A in their thoughts and

          6  process.

          7                 The Institute also looks forward to

          8  our continued work with the City of New York and the

          9  Department of Buildings to promote the use of and

         10  awareness of the design and construction markets

         11  with this updated Building Code.  Thank you very

         12  much.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Thank you all

         14  very much.  To Ms. Scavo, as I said in my opening --

         15  Scavo, thank you for the correction, that section of

         16  the Code has been removed, so I'm sure you'll leave

         17  here happy with that.

         18                 MS. SCAVO:  Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Thank you all

         20  very much.  Next I have Jesse Vital (phonetic) and

         21  also Sal Matteoli.  They're both on 578.  You may

         22  begin.

         23                 MR. VITAL:  My name is Jesse Vital

         24  with Hughes Associates, and on this matter I'm

         25  representing the EIFS industry. This basically
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          2  concerns the EIFS section which is included into

          3  Chapter 14 of the proposed Building Code.

          4                 We initially would like to say we

          5  appreciated the time and effort that all the members

          6  of the various committees that we were involved with

          7  and were able to work together to begin to put a

          8  section in the Building Code with respect to the

          9  EIFS types of products.  These products are

         10  basically exterior wall coverings used on the

         11  exterior of buildings and provide significant value

         12  to those buildings.

         13                 In the section which is currently in

         14  Chapter 14, we agree with the majority of the work

         15  that was done.  There are a couple of items that we

         16  would just like to mention at this point because

         17  they will be cleaned up, our understanding is,

         18  shortly. But I would like to make a couple of points

         19  with respect to those.

         20                 In Section 14.02 under definitions

         21  for EIFS, there is an item number six, which is

         22  joint and seam treatments should be eliminated.

         23  EIFS is an exterior wall covering, and while joints

         24  and seams are a part of that, they are not part of

         25  what the manufacturers supply.
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          2                 There was also a problem with respect

          3  to the requirement as to what insulation

          4  instructions should be used to install EIFS, and

          5  that is the ANSI, American National Standards

          6  Institute, EMA 99A is the installation guide which

          7  should be appropriately specified.

          8                 There was one other issue with

          9  respect to testing of the product.  It's an assembly

         10  of products made up with various layers.  Typically,

         11  those layers are tested individually because of the

         12  size and the way once they are put together, you

         13  cannot actually install them into the test chambers,

         14  so these tests are what we call for flame spread and

         15  smoke development ratings.  What we have had for 30

         16  years, there was the capability of testing these

         17  items individually and under ASTM E84.  The way it

         18  is currently written in the Code is that we would

         19  have to test it as an assembly, and that just cannot

         20  physically be done.  It is our understanding in

         21  discussions with the Buildings Department, that will

         22  be cleaned up in an amendment in the next couple of

         23  months and should be straightened out, but I just

         24  wanted to go on record about that.

         25                 The last issue, which was going to
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          2  cause a significant problem for the EIFS industry

          3  was the inclusion of a 12-foot setback for any

          4  building which had EIFS on it.  EIFS has been used

          5  in the City of New York and throughout the United

          6  States for almost 30 years now.  In fact, in the

          7  City of New York the EIFS manufacturers have had EMA

          8  approval for their products for over 20 years, so

          9  this system has been successfully installed and put

         10  on buildings of all types in the City of New York.

         11                 The inclusion of the 12- foot setback

         12  would have restricted the application of that type

         13  of product on many buildings within the City.  I

         14  understand in working with the Department of

         15  Buildings, the City Council and whatever, they have

         16  agreed to recognize the existing practices of what

         17  we have been doing and in the amendment here where

         18  we remove the 12- foot setback, and we're most

         19  appreciative of that because that takes us back to

         20  exactly where we are today with respect to these

         21  products.

         22                 With that, I'd be happy to answer any

         23  questions.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  We're going to

         25  allow the gentleman beside you to testify if he
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          2  wishes.

          3                 MR. MATTEOLI:  Good morning, City

          4  Council.  I want to thank you for the time and the

          5  opportunity to express my appreciation for the

          6  recognition of EIFS in the Building Code. I've been

          7  involved in the EIFS industry since 1987.  We are

          8  distributors of a major EIFS manufacturer.  We have

          9  installed over 2,000 projects since 1994 and have

         10  covered over 15 million square feet with EIFS.  They

         11  all have been successful.  We just want to let you

         12  know that we thank you for considering it, and we'll

         13  continue to install it in the fashion that's

         14  outlined by the Code.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Thank you, and

         16  Council Member Jackson, you have a question?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Good

         18  morning.  Let me thank you for coming in and giving

         19  testimony.  Obviously, you've looked at this and

         20  you've made some proposed changes to the Department

         21  of Buildings in this Committee as far as the

         22  language in there, is that correct?

         23                 MR. VITAL:  That is correct.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  My question,

         25  are you or any members of your organization are
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          2  members of these subcommittees that are working on

          3  the codes?

          4                 MR. VITAL:  Yes, sir.  We have Mr.

          5  Steve Rosario (phonetic) from ACC who is a member of

          6  the Materials Committee, and he sat on the Materials

          7  Committee with respect to various plastics issues to

          8  include EIFS, so I have been specifically involved

          9  with the Materials Committee for probably three

         10  years now during the development of this.

         11                 While we still have some minor clean-

         12  up changes, I think we got, in essence, what was put

         13  in here is new language. The existing International

         14  Building Code has no language with respect to EIFS.

         15  EIFS is installed under the existing International

         16  Building Code through what we call the evaluation

         17  service, similar to your EMA, and uses that as a way

         18  that they get their approvals.

         19                 This was new material being added to

         20  the Code, and that's fine, and we were happy to work

         21  with them, with the Committee, except that as we

         22  began to work with this, there were some minor

         23  problems that we encountered, and we think we can

         24  clean those up.  The biggest one though was the

         25  setback issue.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  In listening

          3  to your testimony, I just question if, in fact, the

          4  committees or subcommittees discussed this

          5  particular matter, especially your testimony as far

          6  as testing the materials.  It can be separately, but

          7  it cannot, and that was definitive, not even an

          8  opinion, that it cannot be tested the way they want

          9  to when it's all configurated together.  I would

         10  assume that, as a layperson, that other people

         11  involved in the subcommittee involved in the

         12  industry would know that.  Wouldn't that be a safe

         13  assumption?

         14                 MR. VITAL:  Yes, sir, but when this

         15  was originally put together, they thought they had

         16  done it correctly.  It turns out that the way the

         17  wording is, that it can be sort of interpreted

         18  either way.  It's clear.  But the way you could

         19  interpret the wording is, you would have to test it

         20  as an assembly.  The other way you could interpret

         21  that would be each part.

         22                 So in discussions with the Building

         23  Department here lately, it was agreed that to

         24  clarify that in this next bill which is to be

         25  performed I think in a couple of months, especially
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          2  with respect to testing issues, just to clean up

          3  some issues with respect to testing, that that would

          4  be taken care of, and that's fine by us if that's

          5  taken of in this next clean up bill, which they're

          6  getting ready to do.  It was just a

          7  miscommunication.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Now with

          9  respect to the setback that your refer to, the 12-

         10  foot setback for the EIFS.

         11                 MR. VITAL:  Yes, sir.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  What impact

         13  would that have by changing what you propose?

         14                 MR. VITAL:  If you were to require

         15  the 12- foot setback, that would basically say that

         16  any wall or any building which has EIFS on it, has

         17  to have a 12- foot setback from a property line or

         18  an adjoining building, and that's for any height

         19  building, not just multi- story, it could be single

         20  story building.  So the problem you would have there

         21  is in downtown or in urban- type areas, you

         22  typically don't have 12- foot setbacks between

         23  buildings.  If I'm doing the front of one of the

         24  buildings right across the street, and I want to put

         25  EIFS on that one store, which is in the middle of
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          2  that block, I theoretically would not be able to do

          3  that because I would not have a 12- foot setback to

          4  the buildings on either side.  They're right up

          5  against it.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  What impact,

          7  if any, would that have on the public?

          8                 MR. VITAL:  On the public is, our

          9  feeling is that it would restrict the use of these

         10  types of products, which are also restrict the

         11  capability of providing good insulation for

         12  buildings and architecturally significant details,

         13  which could be installed on the buildings.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  To have a

         15  12- foot setback, would that be additional cost

         16  factors or taking up space from the developers?

         17                 MR. VITAL:  Yes, it would impact the

         18  developers. This is a fairly cost effective exterior

         19  wall covering, so that means you would eliminate

         20  that and go to something which would probably be

         21  more costly on the building.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  And this is

         23  also expected to be in the clean up bill?

         24                 MR. VITAL:  The removal of the 12-

         25  foot setback is in the amendment that's up here
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          2  today.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Thank you.

          4  Thank you, Mr. Chair.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Thank you,

          6  Council Member Jackson.  Thank you, gentlemen, for

          7  coming here to testify.  Next we have Mr. Russell

          8  Unger and Mr. Bill Sothern.  They're both going to

          9  testify on Intro 578-A.  You may begin in any order.

         10    Just identify yourself before you go into your

         11  testimony for the record. When the light is off, the

         12  mic is on.

         13                 MR. UNGER:  Good morning, Chairperson

         14  Dilan and Members of the Committee.  My name is

         15  Russell Unger, and I'm the Executive Director of the

         16  New York Chapter of the U.S. Green Building Council,

         17  and I'm pleased to express the Chapter's strong

         18  support for Intro 578.  And also, for someone who

         19  has spent four years as a legislative attorney at

         20  the Council, it's a particular pleasure for me to be

         21  before you for the first time since leaving as an

         22  employee.

         23                 For those of you who aren't familiar

         24  with the New York Chapter, as my name implied, we're

         25  part of a larger, national organization, and like
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          2  the U.S. Green Building Council National, we're

          3  working to advance buildings that are

          4  environmentally responsible, profitable and healthy

          5  places to live and work.  Our membership includes

          6  many of the City's largest developers and builders,

          7  product manufacturers and the foremost architects

          8  and engineers in the country.

          9                 Intro 578 incorporates many

         10  sustainability features that Commissioner Lancaster

         11  has certainly gone over last week.  I'm not going to

         12  repeat everything she would have addressed, but I'll

         13  just concentrate on two issues.  First is just to

         14  explain why it's important that building code

         15  include any environmental provisions and just

         16  highlight a few examples.

         17                 If you live in New York and you care

         18  about the environment, you should care about

         19  buildings.  That's because buildings account for 79

         20  percent of the City's greenhouse gas emissions, 80

         21  to 90 percent of its water use and about 95 percent

         22  of the electricity consumption.  So whether you care

         23  about resource extraction, the water shed, climate

         24  change, air pollution, in New York it all comes down

         25  to buildings.
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          2                 Intro 578 includes many provisions

          3  that will improve the environmental and health

          4  performance of buildings.  For instance, there are

          5  provisions that give rebates for certain green

          6  features from the Department of Building fees.

          7  Other provisions of the bill will just either

          8  mandate or permit common sense green building

          9  techniques.  For example, under the bill new and

         10  renovated roof tops have to be painted white.

         11  There's no reason right now that roof tops are

         12  typically painted a darker color or black.  All that

         13  does is mean your cooling loads in the summer are

         14  higher, and it actually decreases the life of the

         15  roof.  It's just common sense, in contrast to white

         16  coating, will reflect the heat and the sun.

         17                 Another example are the provisions in

         18  Intro 578 requiring that buildings demonstrate

         19  compliance with the State Energy Code, and that may

         20  not sound like much, but up until now, compliance

         21  has worked basically on the honor system because it

         22  was a state law.

         23                 One of the questions I've been asked

         24  a number of times is whether Intro 578 goes far

         25  enough in greening the code, and the short answer to
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          2  that question is no.  It certainly doesn't. There's

          3  much, much more that can and should be done, but

          4  that's not what this bill is about.  This bill is a

          5  first step down that road. It's an important step,

          6  and it's not been held out as anything but a first

          7  step.  It's a down payment, and we expect more to

          8  come later, and we'll support that more later.

          9                 Well before the environment was the

         10  hot issue it is today, this Council was a leader in

         11  passing countless groundbreaking environmental laws,

         12  including the City's green building law.  I hope

         13  that the Council will build on that legacy by

         14  passing Intro 578 and moving onto greening the rest

         15  of the code, and I'm available for any questions you

         16  might have.  Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Thank you, Mr.

         18  Unger.  Correct me if I'm wrong, is it Sothern?

         19                 MR. SOTHERN:  Yes, it is.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Okay.

         21                 MR. SOTHERN:  Hi, Chairman Dilan and

         22  Members of the Committee.  My name is Bill Sothern.

         23  I'm a certified industrial hygienist and I'm the

         24  Chief Investigator for Microecologies, an East

         25  Harlem based indoor environmental inspection and
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          2  contracting firm.

          3                 Over the past 12 years I've conducted

          4  over 3,000 mold inspections and mold remediation

          5  projects.  Most of these investigations that I've

          6  conducted have been in response to health complaints

          7  by residents.  The primary health complaint that we

          8  hear is allergies, and particularly asthma.

          9                 For the past eight years, I've worked

         10  with the Little Sisters of the Assumption, Family

         11  Health Services, Asthma Program in East Harlem, to

         12  help them to learn how to teach members of the

         13  community how to recognize and prevent exposure to

         14  factors that cause asthma triggers that cause asthma

         15  in their homes.

         16                 I'm here today to discuss 578 Section

         17  12, indoor environments, and particularly to discuss

         18  the impact that the use of sheetrock or paper faced

         19  gypsum board has on exacerbating this terrible

         20  problem we have with asthma, not only East Harlem

         21  but in many other of the low income areas of the

         22  City.

         23                 According to the American Lung

         24  Association in the City of New York, over one

         25  million New York City residents, including 300,000
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          2  children, have asthma.  Asthma is the leading cause

          3  of school absenteeism and hospitalization for

          4  children under 14 years old.  A recent study by the

          5  Harlem Children's Zone indicates that 25 percent of

          6  the children in Central Harlem suffer from asthma.

          7  There has now been sufficient evidence in a 2004

          8  study by the Institute of Medicine, and another 2004

          9  study by the University of Connecticut, that has

         10  clearly associated the presence of mold in homes

         11  with the occurrence of asthma.

         12                 There is one thing that we can do in

         13  578 Section 12 that would be the single greatest

         14  step that could be accomplished in reducing the

         15  prevalence rate of asthma, and that is to eliminate

         16  the use of paper- faced gypsum board, commonly known

         17  as sheetrock in places that are likely to sustain

         18  water damage over the useful life of the building.

         19                 Those places include basements and

         20  other below grade rooms, mechanical rooms that house

         21  air conditioning systems, interior surfaces on the

         22  rear walls of fan cool units, ceilings beneath cold

         23  water pipes, ceilings beneath air handlers and

         24  ceiling plenums, bathroom ceilings, plumbing and

         25  electrical chases, that are very susceptible to
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          2  water running down those penetrations between slabs

          3  in particularly during floods and fire fighting

          4  incidents, laundry rooms and walls beneath kitchen

          5  sinks.

          6                 If we were to do that, and there are

          7  readily available very comparably priced materials

          8  now that can be used in place of sheetrock that will

          9  not sustain mold growth, notably Georgia Pacific's

         10  dense armor plus, which has an ASTM rating for mold

         11  resistance of 10, which is the maximum score.  If we

         12  can require that sheetrock be restricted from use in

         13  these areas that are likely to sustain water damage

         14  over the useful life of the building, we can make a

         15  substantial dent in reducing the prevalence rate of

         16  asthma, both for our children and for other

         17  sufferers of asthma in the City.  Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Thank you.

         19  Council Member Jackson?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Concerning

         21  your recommendation to not use sheetrock or paper

         22  covered material in areas below grade, I believe you

         23  said?

         24                 MR. SOTHERN:  Yes, sir.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Are you a
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          2  member of any of the subcommittees of the Department

          3  of Building that has come up with the

          4  recommendations that you're putting forward that a

          5  recommendation be made?  Are you involved in any of

          6  these committees?

          7                 MR. SOTHERN:  I am not, sir.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Are any of

          9  the organizations that you belong to that are

         10  looking to ensure that the environment, as a result

         11  of these codes, are more appropriate for the

         12  individuals that live in New York City and for the

         13  people that breathe and that deal with the type of

         14  asthma and other diseases as a result of mold?  Has

         15  that been raised in any of the subcommittees of the

         16  Department of Buildings in coming up with this?

         17                 MR. SOTHERN:  Julian, are you aware

         18  of the forums in which this has been discussed?  We

         19  have been discussing it through organizations

         20  including Mt. Sinai and Montefori and other forums

         21  where we've had the opportunity to make

         22  presentations.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  I guess my

         24  question is whether or not the recommendation that

         25  you're making now, has that gone through the systems
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          2  in place in order for them to make a determination

          3  or recommendation to the full board or body that

          4  this is what they should do?  In essence, that's

          5  what I'm asking.

          6                 MR. SOTHERN:  I'm not sure it has,

          7  sir.  If I could be part of that, it would be my

          8  pleasure.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Because I

         10  think that that's where it should go to.  To make

         11  the recommendation here, I guess, you can do that,

         12  but that's not the ideal situation to do, do you

         13  know what I mean?

         14                 MR. SOTHERN:  Sure.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Especially

         16  when they have I think subcommittees in place that

         17  are dealing with all of these particular areas.

         18  From the little knowledge that I have, even when

         19  some residents and tenants raise the issue of mold

         20  and trouble breathing where they have torn down

         21  walls, and you can see all of the mold behind the

         22  walls and what have you, and the fact that it had a

         23  negative effect on the people living in these

         24  apartments or dwellings, even though it may not be

         25  visible, but it's behind the sheetrock or wherever.
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          2                 MR. SOTHERN:  That's one of the

          3  problems with sheetrock is there's paper face on

          4  both sides.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  So what you

          6  would be recommending then?  Assuming that you were

          7  a member of the subcommittee or committee reviewing

          8  this to make a recommendation, and you were saying

          9  not to use this in areas that are vulnerable to

         10  getting wet, and so forth and so on, what material

         11  would you recommend to use?

         12                 MR. SOTHERN:  There are several

         13  players, but two major players in the gypsum board

         14  industry.  They are U.S. Gypsum, who actually owns

         15  the trademark, sheetrock is actually a registered

         16  trademark of U.S. Gypsum, and Georgia Pacific.  Both

         17  of them have alternative products that are mold

         18  resistant.  Georgia Pacific has dense armor plus.  A

         19  regular piece of sheetrock might cost $13 for a four

         20  foot by eight foot piece.  The dense armor plus is

         21  about $16, so it's about $3 a board more.

         22                 U.S. Gypsum also has a product called

         23  fiber rock. Fiber rock is comparably priced to the

         24  dense armor plus.  ASTM ratings, because ASTM has a

         25  standard for mold resistance.  The ASTM rating for
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          2  Georgia Pacific's dense armor plus is a 10 on a

          3  scale 10.  It just won't grow mold.  The U.S. Gypsum

          4  fiber rock has a rating of 8 on a scale of 10.

          5                 Cement board, or wonder board or dura

          6  lock are two other good alternatives, although those

          7  products are more difficult to work with and more

          8  expensive to use.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  I think in

         10  your testimony you said that this should be used in

         11  areas that are vulnerable to get wet and below grade

         12  areas?

         13                 MR. SOTHERN:  Correct.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  So like you

         15  mean cellars and basements and places like that?

         16                 MR. SOTHERN:  Basements particularly.

         17    We have a lot of basement dwellings in New York

         18  City.  We have occasional flooding.  For example, in

         19  the flooding that we had just in April, we probably

         20  received 100 calls from residents who had flooding

         21  in their basement apartments.  Once sheetrock is

         22  recurrently water damaged, the growth of a black

         23  mold called stachbotrys is all too common an

         24  occurrence.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Well, I
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          2  would strongly recommend that you put your

          3  recommendations forward and contact the Department

          4  of Buildings in order to get in front of the

          5  Committee in order to discuss this particular

          6  matter.  You do have a representative from the

          7  Department of Buildings here.  If you have not made

          8  those recommendations, I would recommend that you do

          9  that.

         10                 Concerning, Mr. Unger, concerning the

         11  green New York, you indicated that, for example,

         12  like tar roofs on buildings are normally black, but

         13  they don't have to be black, is that correct?  Is

         14  there a different cost factor?  Let's assume that

         15  they were white.  I know that if I lived on a top

         16  floor in the summer time, it's just unbearable for a

         17  lot of tenants that live on the top floor of

         18  buildings because the tar roof, it just heats up so

         19  much, and I heard about that recently.  But what

         20  would it cost as far as to make them, for example,

         21  white, or beige?  Is there an increase in cost

         22  factor in that, or there is not?

         23                 MR. UNGER:  Well, typically, it

         24  depends whether you're putting a coating on the roof

         25  afterwards.  A lot of times when you build up the
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          2  roof, the final thing you'll do is you'll put a

          3  coating that protects the roof.  So the color of the

          4  coating doesn't necessarily mean it's going to be

          5  more expensive.  Silver is very common, but white

          6  reflects more than silver.  So, in general, if

          7  you're already putting a coating, you're looking at

          8  a very small, I think under a dollar a square foot,

          9  a very, very small increase in cost, if any.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  So from a

         11  black tar roof to a silver to a white, I mean,

         12  obviously you would want to go with the white, but

         13  silver is sort of like in between?

         14                 MR. UNGER:  It is in between.  It's

         15  better than black, but there's no reason you would

         16  do silver instead of doing white.  Your roof will

         17  last longer.  Your cooling lows would be lower.

         18  You'll save energy.  There's really no reason, if

         19  you're putting a coating on a roof --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Is this part

         21  of Mayor Bloomberg's, what is it, New York City

         22  2030?

         23                 MR. UNGER:  Well, it's in Intro 578,

         24  so it's part of the Building Code, which is in the

         25  green provisions I think are part of PLNYC.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  So

          3  currently, are you making a recommendation or a

          4  change in the current code or what?

          5                 MR. UNGER:  No, I'm supporting Intro

          6  578 as highlighting one of the provisions that is

          7  particularly sensible in the environmental front.

          8  This is one of them that's already in the Code right

          9  now, in the bill right now.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay, so

         11  you're just highlighting it.

         12                 MR. UNGER:  Just highlighting it.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay.  Thank

         14  you very much. Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Thank you,

         16  Council Member Jackson, and to Mr. Sothern, I would

         17  agree with some of the comments that Council Member

         18  Jackson made to you in regard to your issue.  I

         19  think it's very interesting, and I believe that you

         20  should reach out to the Department of Buildings to

         21  see if it could be assessed in the next round.  I

         22  think it's something that should be at minimum

         23  looked at.  Thank you.

         24                 Next, I believe that takes care of

         25  everyone that has signed up to, no, it doesn't.
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          2  Next we'll have Mr. Anthony Parra that's here to

          3  speak on Intro 34, and he will go first on the next

          4  panel.  Then we'll also have Mr. Daniel, and please

          5  correct me if I mispronounce the name, Madrzykowski,

          6  and Mr. Dominick Kasmauskas. Okay, Mr. Parra, we'll

          7  begin with you on Intro 34.  When the light is off,

          8  the mic is on.

          9                 MR. PARRA:  Good afternoon, Chairman.

         10    My name is Anthony Parra.  I'm the Industrial

         11  Business Owned Services Manager for EWVIDCO, the

         12  East Williamsburg Valley Industrial Development

         13  Corporation.  We're the managers and facilitators

         14  for the North Brooklyn and Green Point Williamsburg

         15  Industrial Business Owners on behalf of the Mayor's

         16  Office of Industrial Manufacturing businesses.

         17                 We're here to speak on behalf of

         18  Intro No. 34 on the increase in fines for industrial

         19  business property owners converting their buildings

         20  illegally to residential buildings.

         21                 We're in support of this particular

         22  change in the Administrative Code because we agree

         23  that too many industrial buildings are being lost to

         24  illegal residential conversions, which is

         25  diminishing greatly the availability of viable
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          2  industrial space, not only in the industrial

          3  business zones, but in the areas surrounding the

          4  industrial business zones, and greatly also

          5  diminishes the opportunity for these industrial

          6  businesses to expand and increase, not only in

          7  employment, but also in opportunities for other

          8  businesses to begin and flourish.

          9                 The only concern that we have is that

         10  for fines to be increased, there also needs to be an

         11  increase in enforcement. Too many times fines are

         12  available to be subjected to these businesses or to

         13  these property owners that convert these buildings,

         14  but they're not being enforced.  Whether it's

         15  because DOB is having trouble getting into the

         16  buildings to actually inspect them, or simply

         17  because the fact that there aren't enough DOB

         18  inspectors available, that's one of our major

         19  concerns, and that's one of the things that we'd

         20  like see to change, an increase in enforcement so

         21  that these increase in fines can actually make a

         22  difference.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Thank you.

         24  Council Member Reyna, do you have anything to add?

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Thank you, Mr.
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          2  Chair.  I just wanted to take an opportunity to just

          3  ask a few questions, if you can indulge me here.  As

          4  far as the East Williamsburg industrial area, the

          5  number of buildings lost, would you have a count off

          6  the top of your head if you didn't come prepared

          7  with that accurate count, as to how many buildings

          8  have been illegally converted?

          9                 MR. PARRA:  There was a study done,

         10  if I'm not mistaken, about three or four years ago

         11  in which to my recollection the estimated count was

         12  87 buildings.  Since it was four years ago, whether

         13  or not if that number has changed and how

         14  drastically it has changed, it's a big question.

         15  Unfortunately, we haven't had too many resources to

         16  be able to go and survey the area to determine

         17  whether or not if there has been an increase.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  These 87

         19  buildings, have you had any contact with the

         20  property owners?

         21                 MR. PARRA:  On some occasions, we

         22  have.  Either prior to their conversions or after

         23  they've attempted to convert and seek variance

         24  requests, we have made contact with some of them,

         25  but a very relative number few.  We've attempted to
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          2  once they've basically gone through the system and

          3  have been told that they need to maintain either a

          4  commercial or a light manufacturing space, we have

          5  attempted to find businesses to fill these spaces.

          6  But the cost for the rentals had skyrocketed so high

          7  that any normal business wouldn't have been able to

          8  afford it, which is why they were trying to convert

          9  it to residential, so that this way they can get the

         10  money that they basically invested in the conversion

         11  of the building.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  And so it's

         13  part of doing business, as far as maintaining their

         14  properties to just write a check in violation, if

         15  they're summonsed with a violation?

         16                 MR. PARRA:  That's exactly correct.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Do you find

         18  that the property owners should be held liable?  Are

         19  the property owners knowingly violating?

         20                 MR. PARRA:  It's hard to say.

         21  There's a lot of property owners that will lease,

         22  whether it be a floor in a multi story building,

         23  they'll lease it to a third party in which that

         24  third party supposedly unbeknownst to the property

         25  owner would make the conversions.  But it's been our
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          2  experience to know that regardless of whether the

          3  property owner has a blind eye or not, if you own a

          4  building, you're pretty much aware of what's going

          5  on in your building.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Are your

          7  property owners, as far as the industrial area is

          8  concerned, the organization that oversees this

          9  industrial park, have you contacted for the sake of

         10  knowingly informing these property owners that they

         11  occupy property in a manufacturing, industrial zone?

         12                 MR. PARRA:  We have made throughout

         13  the many years that I've been with EWVIDCO, we have

         14  made several attempts at communicating with all of

         15  the property owners.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Written and

         17  verbal?

         18                 MR. PARRA:  Written and verbal, and

         19  we have made attempts.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  So it's fair

         21  to say that right now they knowingly are aware that

         22  they have properties that are for manufacturing and

         23  industrial use only.

         24                 MR. PARRA:  It all depends on whether

         25  or not if messages and mail has been received, but
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          2  if they've received the messages and the mail, then,

          3  yes, they knowingly know that they're in an

          4  industrial business zone.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  I just wanted

          6  to state for the record, currently there is no

          7  section of the Code that deals with a violation as

          8  far as a manufacturing zone building being converted

          9  to residential, so in correcting this, now we're

         10  going to be addressing for the first time the real

         11  effects of having violated the zoning code.

         12                 And so in doing such changes to the

         13  code itself, now we're going to have more

         14  intentional enforcement that will actually result,

         15  we hope, in property owners understanding that

         16  they're violating the code, not just once but twice.

         17    We're talking about illegal conversion of

         18  properties, as well as violating the zoning code as

         19  stated as far as their area is concerned.

         20                 So I appreciate you coming down to

         21  testify.  We're trying to make some real changes

         22  that can measure up to the actual results that we've

         23  been dedicated to making sure that we're bringing

         24  back businesses and new sectors of the industrial

         25  world. I know that the Administration is supporting
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          2  these changes, and we hope to just continue to

          3  monitor our industrial parks, so that we can, in

          4  fact, make them stronger.  So thank you very much,

          5  Mr. Parra.

          6                 MR. PARRA:  Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Thank you, and

          8  now we'll move on to Intro 4-A.  I believe Mr.

          9  Madrzykowski, I'll allow you to go first since you

         10  have traveled the greatest distance to be here.

         11                 MR. MADRZYKOWSKI:  Thank you very

         12  much.  Good morning, Chairperson Dilan and Members

         13  of the Committee.  My name is Dan Madrzykowski.  I'm

         14  a fire protection engineer with the National

         15  Institute of Standards of Technology Building and

         16  Fire Research Laboratory in Gaithersburg, Maryland.

         17  NIST is a non regulatory federal research agency

         18  that's been specializing in measurements and

         19  standards including fire research for more than a

         20  century.

         21                 During my 21 years in NIST, I've been

         22  involved in several research programs involving

         23  automatic fire sprinklers.  I was also the Chair of

         24  the National Fire Protection Association, Technical

         25  Committee on Residential Sprinkler Systems from 1996
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          2  through 2006.  Council Member Avella requested that

          3  NIST provide information on sprinkler research that

          4  it has conducted, especially research results that

          5  would be relevant to college dormitories and student

          6  housing.  I'm here representing NIST as a result of

          7  that request.

          8                 According to Campus Firewatch, an

          9  organization that collects fire data specific

         10  college students from news accounts, the academic

         11  year of 2006 through 2007 was the most deadly year

         12  on record with 20 fatalities caused by fire.  Since

         13  the year 2000, 108 students have been lost due to

         14  fire.

         15                 Automatic sprinkler systems have been

         16  used successfully to protect industrial and

         17  commercial buildings for more than 100 years.  In

         18  1973, the report of the National Commission on Fire

         19  Prevention and Control, entitled "America Burning"

         20  changed the focus of sprinkler research from

         21  protecting the building and its contents to

         22  protecting the occupants of the building.

         23                 Since that time, NIST has been using

         24  measurements and analysis to develop methods to

         25  predict automatic sprinkler response and fire
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          2  suppression effectiveness.

          3                 In its most basic form, an automatic

          4  fire sprinkler system consists of a water supply,

          5  piping to deliver the water from the supply to the

          6  sprinklers, and thermally activated sprinklers. Each

          7  sprinkler has a temperature sensitive link.

          8  Therefore, water is only discharged in the area

          9  where the gases from the fire have become hot enough

         10  to activate the sprinkler.

         11                 NIST has conducted studies using full

         12  scale fire experiments to examine the impact of

         13  automatic sprinklers in terms of fire control and

         14  life safety.  These studies have included health

         15  care occupancies, office occupancies, medical

         16  laboratory occupancies, residential occupancies and

         17  dormitories.

         18                 In all of these studies, sprinklers

         19  installed in accordance with the appropriate NFPA

         20  sprinkler installation standard, NFPA 13, 13D or

         21  13R, were shown to be effective in preventing

         22  flashover, controlling the fire and in many cases

         23  completely extinguishing the fire.

         24                 As an aside, a flashover is a

         25  transition from a fire condition that is limited to
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          2  one portion of a room to a fire condition where the

          3  entire room and contents are burning.  Even fire

          4  fighters in protective clothing cannot survive under

          5  these conditions.

          6                 Since the amount of heat and toxic

          7  gas produced by fires is reduced by sprinklers, the

          8  environment in areas adjacent to the fire room, and

          9  in many cases the fire room itself, remain tenable

         10  for building occupants.

         11                 During my career at NIST, I have

         12  examined many fire tragedies.  As with most fatal

         13  incidents, there is typically more than one item or

         14  action that leads to a catastrophic failure.

         15  Therefore, fire safety relies on multiple components

         16  to provide a complete system to improve a person's

         17  chances for surviving a fire.

         18                 The building fire safety system

         19  should include compartmentation of spaces within the

         20  building, smoke alarms, automatic sprinklers, an

         21  adequate and well- marked egress path out of the

         22  building and occupant training.

         23                 To give an example of these

         24  components, a fire starts on a bed.  The smoke from

         25  the fire rises until it contacts the ceiling and
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          2  then spreads out through the walls, and a smoke

          3  layer begins to develop.  If the door to the bedroom

          4  is closed, that smoke will continue to collect in

          5  the bedroom, but the spread of the smoke to other

          6  areas of the building will be limited by the closed

          7  door, for an example of compartmentation.

          8                 If a smoke alarm is located within

          9  that bedroom, it will activate when the level of

         10  smoke exceeds its detection threshold.  This

         11  provides an early warning to occupants that can hear

         12  the alarm.  As the fire continues to grow, it's

         13  releasing more energy, which results in hotter

         14  combustion gases.  If there is an automatic

         15  sprinkler in the room when the combustion gases

         16  exceed the temperature threshold, typically 160

         17  degrees F, the sprinkler will activate and control

         18  the fire.  If the building occupants have been

         19  trained to recognize the sound of the fire alarm and

         20  how to respond to it, they can take the required

         21  actions and follow the exit markings to make their

         22  way safely out of the building.  When the Fire

         23  Department arrives, they would have a fire that is

         24  not spread beyond the room of origin and can be

         25  easily suppressed.
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          2                 With all the systems in place and

          3  functioning, this scenario would result in no life

          4  loss either to the building occupants or to fire

          5  fighters.

          6                 It is important to recognize that any

          7  of the building systems could fail due to lack of

          8  maintenance, human error or for other reasons.  That

          9  is why it is important to have all the fire safety

         10  system components in place.

         11                 The automatic sprinkler system,

         12  however, is the only component of the system whose

         13  function is to control the fire and mitigate the

         14  hazard in terms of the generation of heat and toxic

         15  gases.

         16                 In February, 2003 a fire in an

         17  unsprinklered nightclub in Rhode Island resulted in

         18  the death of 100 people.  The NIST study examining

         19  that fire concluded that an automatic sprinkler

         20  system would have controlled the fire, reduced the

         21  amount of heat produced, reduced the amount of toxic

         22  gases produced and improved visibility when compared

         23  to the fire with no sprinklers. In fact, no

         24  untenable conditions were created in the sprinklered

         25  experiment, while in the unsprinklered experiment
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          2  the environment became untenable by all measures

          3  within 90 seconds of the start of the fire.

          4                 In conclusion, this research, along

          5  with other studies conducted by the United States

          6  Fire Administration and Underwriters Laboratory have

          7  demonstrated time and again that properly installed,

          8  maintained and operating sprinklers will reduce the

          9  hazard from fire.  Given the choice between a

         10  sprinklered and a non- sprinklered building, the

         11  sprinklered building will save lives.

         12                 I have attached a copy of the NIST

         13  report impact of sprinklers on fire hazard and

         14  dormitories, dayroom experiments to the notes.  I

         15  also have brought some CDs if you're interested,

         16  which have videos from those tests demonstrating

         17  sprinklered versus unsprinklered dormitory and day

         18  room experiments.  Thank you very much.  I'm happy

         19  to answer any questions.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Thank you.  Next,

         21  we'll go to Mr. Kasmauskas.  Please, again, correct

         22  me if I error in the pronunciation in the last name.

         23                 MR. KASMAUSKAS:  Dominick Kasmauskas,

         24  National Fire Sprinkler Association.  I actually

         25  have testimony for 578-A as well. The testimony for
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          2  Intro 4-A.  I have copies here.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  You can do both.

          4                 MR. KASMAUSKAS:  Okay.  On Intro 4-A,

          5  the National Fire Sprinkler Association absolutely

          6  supports the move to fire sprinkler student housing.

          7    Although 4-A as written falls a little short of

          8  the mark of covering all student housing, I would

          9  ask that you reconsider possibly moving it a little

         10  further forward with some of the student housing

         11  stock that's out there.

         12                 As we know from Campus Firewatch, 81

         13  percent of the fatalities have been off campus

         14  housing.  Just meeting the student housing on campus

         15  or student owned facilities is a good start, but I

         16  would consider that either now or in the future

         17  expanding this bill even further.  I commend the

         18  Council Members and the Committee Members that

         19  tackled this tough issue.

         20                 Parents, as you know, they don't

         21  think of it all the time, but parents, they should

         22  have that expectancy that their child is going to

         23  come home alive without having been involved the

         24  ravages of an unwanted fire, let alone be killed in

         25  one.  Again, the National Fire Sprinkler Association
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          2  supports this move, and I thank you for the

          3  opportunity.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  That was on Intro

          5  4-A.  You can begin on 578.

          6                 MR. KASMAUSKAS:  578-A, National Fire

          7  Sprinkler also supports the move by the City to

          8  adopt a model building code.  I just want to pick on

          9  Section 903.2.7, which is regarding one and two-

         10  family homes for New York City.  The movement is out

         11  there nationally.  The present section reads the

         12  homes of three stories or less above grade plane

         13  will not be required to be fire sprinklered.  New

         14  York State Code has three stories and above single

         15  family homes will be sprinklered.

         16                 The fire death problem in this

         17  country, 80 percent of the deaths are falling in

         18  that category of one or two family homes as well as

         19  manufactured housing.  I think New York City should

         20  take the leadership in this area and possibly look

         21  at either at least meeting the same requirements by

         22  New York State if not looking at the full

         23  requirements of all new construction in one and two-

         24  family homes falling under NFPA 13D requirements for

         25  fire sprinklers.  Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Thank you.

          3  Council Member Avella?

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  Actually just

          5  a thank you to both gentlemen for coming today, and

          6  especially to NIST.  You came all the way from

          7  Washington to give this testimony, and we certainly

          8  appreciate it.

          9                 I guess my only question would be, I

         10  know you were both here for the testimony of the

         11  Department of Buildings.  What the City is basically

         12  saying through DOB that at some point in the future

         13  this model code program and the people that are

         14  involved in coming up with the new code will review

         15  the issue of retrofitting existing buildings.

         16  Because that's the difference between what they're

         17  suggesting for the new code and my bill.  The time

         18  frame is in question here.  If they took four years

         19  to do the model code, in my opinion, it's going to

         20  take longer to come up with some sort of an

         21  agreement on terms of the older buildings because

         22  obviously that's going to be expensive.

         23                 In your opinion, and maybe you don't

         24  have one, maybe you don't want to comment on this,

         25  what do you think of doing something now as opposed
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          2  to waiting the possibility of four years and beyond

          3  in terms of actually putting in sprinklers in the

          4  older buildings?

          5                 MR. KASMAUSKAS:  I fully agree that

          6  we need to do something right away.  I wouldn't

          7  delay at all.

          8                 MR. MADRZYKOWSKI:  I would just point

          9  out that the technology for quick response

         10  sprinklers for life safety purposes has been around

         11  since the 1980's.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  Thank you,

         13  gentlemen. That's all I have.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Thank you,

         15  Council Member Avella.  Thank you, gentlemen.  Next

         16  to speak on 4-A will be Mr. John Doyle, Mr. Edward

         17  Boles, Ms. Alicia Hurley.  We'll begin with Ms.

         18  Hurley.

         19                 MS. HURLEY:  Good morning.  My name

         20  is Alicia Hurley, and I'm the Associate Vice-

         21  President for Government and Community Affairs at

         22  New York University.

         23                 On behalf of NYU, I would like to

         24  thank the Council for providing the opportunity to

         25  make comments today on the proposed fire sprinkler
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          2  legislation.  We consider this a continuation of the

          3  conversation that we have had over the past year

          4  with the Council, particularly with Councilman Tony

          5  Avella.

          6                 Let me be clear, I speak today only

          7  on behalf of NYU.  I don't represent any other

          8  institutions in this City.  I think there has been

          9  some confusion on that regard, so I just want to be

         10  clear about that.

         11                 Let me begin also by saying that I

         12  think we all have the same goal in mind, which is

         13  fire safety for our students.  I think some of the

         14  differential now is how do we get there.  So I want

         15  to talk to you a little bit about some of our

         16  feedback on your proposal, sir, and also just some

         17  of the general things that we're doing at the

         18  University.

         19                 Like most campuses across the nation,

         20  the University spends extensive time, effort and

         21  resources toward the necessary provisions that

         22  address fire safety, ranging from sprinklers to

         23  mechanical systems, to fire safety education, which

         24  plays a key role in providing NYU students with

         25  vital information about fire and emergency
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          2  situations.

          3                 At NYU we consider ourselves at the

          4  forefront of fire and life safety.  In 2005, we

          5  launched a proactive campaign to retrofit our

          6  dormitories with sprinklers.  We own 15 residence

          7  halls, a third of which are fully sprinklered.

          8  These sprinklered facilities house more than half of

          9  our 12,000 students in NYU housing.  We project it

         10  will take us at least 15 years to retrofit the

         11  remaining buildings.  Such length of time is needed

         12  for the following reasons:

         13                 First, our residence halls are

         14  occupied year round. They are not on an academic

         15  cycle of nine months.  This means there are intense

         16  pressures on our housing staff, and we can only take

         17  one building off line at any given time.

         18                 Second, the process of retrofitting

         19  is complicated by the age of New York City buildings

         20  and best accomplished during renovations.

         21                 Third, while the safety of our

         22  students is the most important priority, the

         23  resources needed for this undertaking are

         24  significant.  The cost of retrofitting our

         25  facilities will be at least $60 million.  Please
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          2  recall here that we are non- profit institutions,

          3  many of us serving lower income students.  Indeed,

          4  at NYU, over 75 percent of our students receive some

          5  sort of financial aid.  All of these decisions with

          6  financial implications must be measured against the

          7  impact they will have on our students' tuition

          8  bills.

          9                 Having said all of that, NYU

         10  recognizes the need for enhanced fire safety and has

         11  taken proactive steps to maximize occupant and

         12  building safety by installing fire alarm systems and

         13  smoke detection in our dormitories.  Many consider

         14  some of these warning measures much more effective

         15  in managing fire safety.

         16                 Beyond the mechanical measures, we

         17  have also instituted a number of policies to

         18  proactively address fire safety. We have a strict

         19  non- smoking policy in all of our dorms.  We have

         20  banned fire contributing items, such as halogen

         21  lights, flammables and candles, and we adopted the

         22  California standard for materials, which is the most

         23  restrictive in the country and applies to mattresses

         24  and stuffed furniture.

         25                 While we have been working
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          2  productively with the Council over the past year,

          3  and they have been open to our suggestions, we are

          4  not able to support the proposed legislation. It is

          5  too restrictive and is subject to misinterpretation.

          6    The time frame for implementation for retrofitting

          7  our own facilities needs to be longer, and the

          8  language defining student housing could apply to any

          9  building where young people live, even where there

         10  are a substantial number of other occupants in the

         11  building.

         12                 The restrictions on leased facilities

         13  are very problematic for NYU.  There are many

         14  pressures on institutions seeking housing for

         15  students and competing in this hot New York real

         16  estate market.  Legislation that ties our hands when

         17  we are in that market often competing with high- end

         18  residential developers could cripple our efforts to

         19  provide housing for our students.  We do not oppose

         20  the concept of sprinklers in leased facilities, but

         21  request that it only apply to facilities where we

         22  control substantially all of the building and

         23  through long- term leases of at least ten years with

         24  an appropriate implementation window.

         25                 It is obvious that the burden will
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          2  fall on us and not the owners of these buildings,

          3  and retrofitting these buildings would be an

          4  extremely difficult undertaking.

          5                 We have simultaneously been working

          6  with the New York City Department of Buildings to

          7  discuss enhanced fire safety requirements in

          8  connection with their proposed new building code.

          9  Changes in the Building Code necessitate

         10  consultation with other affected City agencies such

         11  as the Fire Department and HPD, and care must be

         12  taken to coordinate these changes with other

         13  applicable laws.

         14                 We encourage the Council and the

         15  Department of Buildings to combine their collective

         16  will and expertise to draft protective and workable

         17  fire safety requirements that do not have unintended

         18  negative consequences for the City's institutions of

         19  higher learning and can be incorporated into the new

         20  Building Code. Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Thank you.  Mr.

         22  Doyle?

         23                 MR. DOYLE:  Good afternoon.  My name

         24  is John Doyle. I'm Vice- President for Government

         25  Affairs of the Real Estate Board of New York.
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          2                 I guess I'd like to begin by

          3  commending the sponsor of this bill.  It's an

          4  important piece of legislation, and I speak not just

          5  as a representative of the real estate industry, but

          6  also as a father of four college- age or near

          7  college- age children. Because of that, I suppose I

          8  have a special sympathy for the sponsor and hope

          9  that the Council can take action in the near future.

         10                 Insofar as his particular proposal is

         11  concerned, there's a lack of clarity in the drafting

         12  of the bill on two issues.  In the first section of

         13  the bill it seems to cover all occupancies.  In the

         14  last section of the bill, it talks about occupancies

         15  that are rented to 75 percent or more to students.

         16  We believe that the first section has to be amended

         17  to reflect the language in the last section,

         18  otherwise, there is, in effect, a conflict between

         19  the two and a lack of clarity.

         20                 The other issue is that there's a

         21  trigger date here, effective such and such date, any

         22  of this type of occupancy must be sprinklered by a

         23  certain date.  But the bill doesn't address what

         24  happens if, in the intervening period, the landlord

         25  stops renting to students.  Under the current
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          2  language, that landlord would still be required to

          3  sprinkler the building by the deadline date in the

          4  bill.  We suggest that's unreasonable that a

          5  landlord should have a choice as to whether to

          6  continue to lease to students or not, and, if not,

          7  they certainly shouldn't have to sprinkler the

          8  building.

          9                 Now having said all of that, in

         10  looking at this bill, I had not contemplated the

         11  impact on the new process that will be set up

         12  because of the universal Building Code, the model

         13  Building Code.  Keep in mind, we're accustomed to

         14  dealing with proposed changes one at a time, as the

         15  Council is, as anybody who's involved with the

         16  process is.

         17                 But the Department makes a very valid

         18  point that in adopting the Code, which I assume

         19  you're about to, you are also adopting the

         20  philosophy behind the Code, which is that changes

         21  should be done collectively through these

         22  stakeholder conferences. So there's an important

         23  need for the Council to kind of reconcile how it has

         24  done business before with how it will be doing

         25  business in the future in terms of the new Building
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          2  Code.

          3                 All I can say on that count is that I

          4  would hope that whatever the process may be, that a

          5  resolution of this issue is quick, that in fact a

          6  priority is placed on having students in our City

          7  protected with sprinklered buildings.  Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Thank you.  Mr.

          9  Boles?

         10                 MR. BOLES:  Good afternoon, Committee

         11  Chair Dilan and Committee Members of Housing and

         12  Building.  My name is Edward Boles.  I'm speaking on

         13  behalf of Jack McDonnell of the Uniformed Fire

         14  Officers Association representing the Lieutenants,

         15  Captains, Battalion Chiefs, Deputy Chiefs,

         16  Supervising Fire Marshals, and Medical Officers of

         17  the FDNY.

         18                 I am here to support Intro 4-A and

         19  the installation of sprinkler systems in student

         20  housing.  The UFOA's position is quite clear,

         21  sprinklers save lives.  One could never put a cost

         22  on human life, and if this City Council can

         23  implement a law that will help ensure the safety and

         24  preservation of human life from the ravage of fire,

         25  then our advice is do it.
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          2                 Being in the fire service and in the

          3  business of saving lives, we know that if you tinker

          4  with building codes or take the cheapest route, that

          5  life may be jeopardized.

          6                 According to recent studies done by

          7  the United States Fire Administration on Dormitory

          8  Fires, each year there are approximately 1,300

          9  documented fires in schools and college dormitories

         10  in the United States.  From 1994 to 2000, 27

         11  students died and 94 students were injured in campus

         12  housing fires.

         13                 I was a little taken aback when I

         14  heard the new NIST statistics where the fire

         15  fatalities are actually increasing, which is

         16  something that's very, very disturbing to the fire

         17  service.

         18                 I know there's mixed messages out

         19  there, and we also are getting those mixed messages.

         20    I compliment Council Member Avella in taking the

         21  initiative in trying to implement changes to

         22  sprinkler systems now and getting sprinkler systems

         23  into student housing as quickly as possible.  I also

         24  understand DOB's concerns. They do provide with some

         25  good code for new buildings in the future, but I
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          2  share the sentiment with a lot of what was spoken

          3  today is we need to do it now.  We need to clear up

          4  those mixed messages, and come together and get the

          5  ball rolling so we can start to save lives as

          6  quickly as possible.

          7                 I would also like to comment on the

          8  recent construction code amendments.  After a long,

          9  exhaustive process of revising the construction

         10  codes done by the Department of Buildings under the

         11  leadership of Commissioner Lancaster and many

         12  agencies and labor groups, new codes are being

         13  considered.

         14                 The UFOA appreciates Commissioner

         15  Lancaster and her staff for providing our union the

         16  opportunity to have an active role in the process,

         17  especially on the black iron issue.  However, we

         18  would like this Committee and the Council to keep in

         19  mind that as building materials become lighter and

         20  lighter, the structural integrity of the building

         21  under fire conditions becomes compromised.

         22                 If I could just take a moment just to

         23  share an excerpt from a book written by retired

         24  Deputy Chief Vinnie Dunn (phonetic), who is probably

         25  the leading expert in building collapse at fires in
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          2  the country, and it's required reading of all

          3  officers.           From his book, which again is

          4  dated in 1988, he says:  "The use of lightweight

          5  construction materials in the sunbelt and western

          6  states presents another serious danger to the future

          7  fire fighters of America.  Fire fighting inside a

          8  burning building constructed of lightweight

          9  materials and by such method is more dangerous than

         10  fire fighting inside a burning building constructed

         11  of traditional materials and by traditional methods.

         12  Lightweight wood trusses connected together by

         13  flimsy sheet metal surface fasteners collapse more

         14  readily than do solid two inch by eight inch beams.

         15  Lightweight steel bar joists fail more readily than

         16  a solid steel girder.  A lightweight wood bearing

         17  wall with studs 24 inches and 30 inches on center

         18  will fail more quickly than a wall with studs 16

         19  inches on center.  A lightweight floor or roof that

         20  is a quarter inch thick will fail before a deck of

         21  58 inch thick.  Lightweight construction materials

         22  and methods are praised by the building industry as

         23  the answer to affordable housing in this country.

         24  However, lightweight construction materials and

         25  methods will kill and injure more fire fighters in
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          2  the future."

          3                 Unfortunately, that practice of using

          4  lightweight construction material has manifested

          5  itself in the recent deaths of nine fire fighters in

          6  Charleston, South Carolina.

          7                 It is our hope that the New York City

          8  continues its vigilance in authoring construction

          9  and building codes that preclude the use of inferior

         10  materials.  I really implore the Council to please

         11  look at those codes very closely.  I also applaud

         12  you in regards to considering sprinklering buildings

         13  in attached one and two- story buildings, which was

         14  earlier reported as being the highest fatality rate

         15  in fires in this country.

         16                 I appreciate the opportunity to

         17  testify this morning.  I am available for any

         18  questions by the Committee.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Thank you all.

         20  Council Member Avella?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  Thank you,

         22  Mr. Chair.  I certainly appreciate the comments of

         23  all three panelists and specifically with REBNY and

         24  NYU.  I've listened to the concerns that you

         25  mentioned, and what I'd like to do is follow up.
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          2  Certainly with REBNY's concerns, there are some

          3  technical issues I think we can resolve.

          4                 With NYU, the only concern I have in

          5  terms of the lease situation, and I think REBNY,

          6  John and I have talked about this as well, is making

          7  sure that if there is a period where you're leasing

          8  a building in terms of retrofitting that we don't

          9  make it that if it's a ten- year lease, and then

         10  they come back, and they have the option to renew

         11  for another ten years and another ten years.  It

         12  could be 20, 30 years down the line before that

         13  building gets retrofitted.

         14                 So I think these are issues that are

         15  well within the possibility of working out, and I

         16  think we should do that.  I think for the Uniformed

         17  Fire Officers Association and for REBNY, I

         18  appreciate your comments about doing it quickly.

         19  Even though the comments of DOB are well taken, that

         20  in the future there is going to be some discussion,

         21  I happen to agree with both of you that in the

         22  meantime we could have a very serious situation.

         23  Since we know that we need to do something, why not

         24  work together and do it now. I appreciate your

         25  comments.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Thank you all.

          3  Thank you, Council Member Avella.  I also would like

          4  to acknowledge that we've been joined by Council

          5  Member Lou Fidler from Brooklyn.

          6                 Next we will call up Mr. Joseph Razza

          7  and Mr. Raphael Revas.  You're both coming to speak

          8  on Intro 578-A.  We'll begin with Mr. Razza.

          9                 MR. RAZZA:  Good afternoon,

         10  Chairperson Dilan and Members of the Council.  My

         11  name is Joseph Razza, and I'm testifying in favor of

         12  Intro 578-A in relation to enacting a new New York

         13  City Construction Codes.  I am a fire protection

         14  engineering consultant with the firm Rolf Jensen &

         15  Associates and the Associate Engineering Manager of

         16  the firm's New York office.  Rolf Jensen &

         17  Associates is engaged exclusively in fire protection

         18  engineering, life safety and security consulting and

         19  is recognized as one of the world's leading fire

         20  protection engineering consulting firms.

         21                 I was appointed to serve on the New

         22  York City Model Code programs, Fire Protection

         23  Technical Committee, Construction Requirements

         24  Technical Committee and the Risk and Security

         25  Advisory Committee.
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          2                 I am testifying today as President of

          3  the Fire Safety Directors Association of New York.

          4  The Association was formed over 30 years ago after

          5  Local Law 5 of 1973 caused the first of several

          6  significant amendments of the fire protection and

          7  life safety provisions of the 1968 Building Code,

          8  which is still in effect today.

          9                 The Fire Safety Directors Association

         10  has over 400 members with most active members

         11  employed in high- rise office buildings and hotels.

         12  In accordance with the By- Laws of the Association,

         13  the purposes of the organization are to preserve

         14  life and property, to create and maintain the safest

         15  possible environment in which all personnel can

         16  conduct their various business endeavors, to

         17  maintain an overview of planning, construction,

         18  maintenance and management of all life safety

         19  systems designed and installed to protect life and

         20  property, and to further the interchange and

         21  interaction between the association members,

         22  professional organizations and government agencies

         23  for the purpose of disseminating and expanding upon

         24  the principles and concepts of safety.

         25                 Several members of the Fire Safety
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          2  Directors Association have been represented on

          3  various model code program technical committees and

          4  advisory committees.  The Fire Safety Directors

          5  Association applauds the Department of Buildings'

          6  efforts and supports the Department's organization

          7  and management of the model code program.

          8                 The Fire Safety Director Association

          9  supports a new code that achieves a balance of

         10  safety, savings and innovation. The Fire Safety

         11  Directors Association supports fire protection and

         12  life safety enhancements for all buildings and

         13  occupancies, specifically high- rise buildings and

         14  buildings that require fire safety directors.

         15                 In closing, the Fire Safety Directors

         16  Association supports the enactment of Intro 578-A in

         17  relation to enacting the new construction codes, and

         18  we urge the Council to set the construction codes on

         19  a three- year revision cycle, so the City will never

         20  again have a building code that is 40 years old

         21  patched by layers of local laws.  Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Thank you, Mr.

         23  Razza.  Mr. Rivas?

         24                 MR. RIVAS:  Good morning.  My name is

         25  Raphael Rivas, and I an advocate for the Brooklyn

                                                            109

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDING

          2  Center for the Independence of the Disabled, BCID.

          3  First of all, I'd like to thank you for allowing me

          4  to come today and to testify in regard to the

          5  Building Code situation.

          6                 People of disabilities need to be

          7  considered when anything deals with Building Code

          8  because we live here too, and we have just as equal

          9  rights.

         10                 Entrances to buildings need to be

         11  accessible for people of all types of disabilities.

         12  Doors to enter the building should be either be a

         13  push of a button for wheelchair users or powered

         14  doors that open when you pull it.  Ramps need to be

         15  wide enough for people of disabilities who are in

         16  wheelchairs that need to use them, so that they can

         17  get in and out of buildings.  There should be

         18  something tactical near the entrance of a building,

         19  so that people who are blind or visually impaired

         20  can see that they are entering a building.

         21                 Hallways need to be wide enough for

         22  wheelchair users to get back with ease, so that they

         23  can get around the building without a problem.

         24                 Also, the bathrooms in the buildings

         25  should be accessible to all people with

                                                            110

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDING

          2  disabilities.  All bathrooms should be wheelchair

          3  accessible.  There also should be good contrast in

          4  lighting for people who are blind or visually

          5  impaired.

          6                 The laundry equipment in buildings,

          7  the control panels should be accessible for all

          8  people with all types of disabilities.  Service

          9  elevators, along with regular passenger elevators,

         10  should be fully accessible for all people with

         11  disabilities so that if the regular elevator goes

         12  out, the service elevator can be used for people

         13  with all types of disabilities.

         14                 Signage in the building needs to be

         15  clear and visible to people with visual impairments.

         16    Also important is contrast in all buildings.  The

         17  color contrast is very important for people who have

         18  visual impairments so that they can figure out where

         19  they are going as well.

         20                 In conclusion, this building needs to

         21  consider people with disabilities and be strongly

         22  enforced that people with disabilities can live a

         23  quality of life and have the ease of getting around

         24  that all other people have as well.  Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Thank you both.
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          2  The final panel for today consists of Ann Emerman.

          3  I believe this is Edith Prentiss, and Mr. Matt

          4  Shotkin.

          5                 MS. PRENTISS:  My name is Edith

          6  Prentiss.  I'm the First Vice- President of DIA and

          7  the President of 504 Dames.  I'd like to express

          8  reservations for the Model Building Code 0578, 2007,

          9  proposed model code for New York City.

         10                 Housing is an important issue in the

         11  disability community.  In fact, two of the four

         12  priorities for the disability network of New York

         13  City for 2007 are housing and the Building Code.

         14                 There are many issues that negatively

         15  impact on us in the environment, and we need not

         16  look any further than Roosevelt Island where Coler-

         17  Goldwater has over 2,000 beds.  These 2,000 members

         18  of our community who are residing in a facility who

         19  probably a good number of them could be in the

         20  community if we had accessible and affordable

         21  housing.

         22                 In 1987, Local Law 58 was enacted.

         23  In the time since then, it's been an unenforced

         24  wasteland.  I think that when we start talking about

         25  the model code, we come back to the letter of the
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          2  law versus the intent of the law.  No matter how

          3  well intended the letter of the law is, without

          4  enforcement and without support, it will go nowhere.

          5                 What happens when a building is up in

          6  violation? Given the fact that theoretically 50

          7  percent of plans are reviewed by the Department of

          8  Buildings, we don't see that as being happening at

          9  this point, and we are concerned with the model code

         10  seems to have loosened the protections that we are

         11  currently experiencing, the theoretical protections

         12  that are not being found in our daily lives.

         13                 It seems that the stakeholder process

         14  was very heavily weighted to the developer industry

         15  perspective and their fiscal bottom line.  What

         16  about the bottom line of every New Yorker?  How will

         17  the proposed changes affect our lives and our bottom

         18  lines?  What impact will the code have on future

         19  buildings in New York City?

         20                 While it is refreshing that 578-A

         21  includes the stipulation that it be reviewed every

         22  three years, a bad code will negatively impact New

         23  Yorkers for a long time.

         24                 We believe Intro 578-A should be held

         25  in abeyance until all New Yorkers have an
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          2  opportunity to review and understand the broad,

          3  general aspects of the code.

          4                 I'd like to point out how hard it was

          5  to even find the code.  I actually have read about

          6  100 pages, skipping the tables of violations and

          7  stuff, of the intro, but when you get to the end of

          8  the intro, and you look for the chapters, it says

          9  attachment.  You click, nothing happens.

         10                 I'd like to address Chapter 11

         11  specifically on some of its base assumptions.

         12  Accessible routing in the job place seems to view

         13  people with disabilities as visitors.  We are

         14  employees also.  Why should bed and breakfasts that

         15  are occupied by the owner not be required to meet

         16  the same requirements?  It may be their home, but

         17  first and foremost it's a business.  It's a

         18  business, it's regulated, it should have the same

         19  requirements.  By not requiring press boxes to be on

         20  accessible routes, are you saying people with

         21  disabilities are not or cannot be members of the 3rd

         22  Estate?  Tell that to Chris O'Donnell or John

         23  Hockenberry.

         24                 One of my favorites is the private

         25  bathroom access through an office.  Is the
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          2  assumption that people with disabilities will never

          3  be in those corner offices as an employee?  We don't

          4  go visit someone's office to use their bathroom, but

          5  if you work there, and it's your bathroom, dammit,

          6  it should be accessible.

          7                 There are broad concepts that I think

          8  we all hopefully can agree upon.  That would be

          9  visitability.  I don't think it's outrageous to say

         10  we should be able to get into a main entry.  We

         11  should be able to get into a kitchen, a bathroom, et

         12  cetera.

         13                 If this concept is so arduous and

         14  distasteful to developers and the real estate

         15  industry, make it a requirement.  It should not be a

         16  graciousness of a developer that I should be able to

         17  visit other people.  It should be my right, and I

         18  would certainly hope that these general concepts

         19  would be included and the Department of Buildings

         20  would hopefully, along with our City Council Members

         21  and others, set up forums that would better explain

         22  the Building Code to the citizenry of New York, so

         23  we could all better understand this.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Thank you, Ms.

         25  Prentiss.  Ms. Emerman?
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          2                 MS. EMERMAN:  Good afternoon and

          3  thank you for giving me the opportunity to once

          4  again represent Gray Panthers, a member of Disabled

          5  in Action and the Disability Network of New York

          6  City.

          7                 While I'm not an expert on building

          8  code, I know a great deal about accessibility.  I'm

          9  a native New Yorker and a wheelchair user since

         10  1944.  In my lifetime, probably longer than most of

         11  you are alive today, in my lifetime as a wheelchair

         12  user and a person with disability, I've experienced

         13  many changes.

         14                 When we got our federal civil rights

         15  law in the 1970's, the disability community grabbed

         16  hold of that and ran with it.  In many ways, we

         17  forced access to public transportation polling

         18  sites, pedestrian ramps, housing, the building

         19  codes, and it didn't come easy.  It was usually a

         20  combination of the right time, the right person, and

         21  the right person often being a courageous leader, a

         22  public official.  I can name names, but I don't

         23  think I have time.

         24                 The community did whatever it had to

         25  do, and we never did it as individuals.  We did it
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          2  with comrades and our fellow warriors in the effort

          3  to obtain our civil rights.  We petitioned

          4  government.  We worked with elected officials.  We

          5  filed lawsuits, held demonstrations, when necessary,

          6  engaged in civil disobedience, and yes, got

          7  arrested.

          8                 And here we go again.  Well, the code

          9  certainly as updated on materials and technology,

         10  Intro 578 is less stringent than the previous code

         11  on accessibility.  It has far too many exceptions,

         12  exemptions, opportunity for developer interpretation

         13  and alternative access and loopholes that the City

         14  Council must close.  New York City can do better.

         15                 We urge the Council and this

         16  Committee to step back, take time, strive for the

         17  optimum accessibility.  There is public money in all

         18  of the planned RAND developments that are going to

         19  happen not only in Manhattan but in all of the

         20  boroughs.  You've got site preparation, usually at

         21  the cost of the City, direct subsidies and/or tax

         22  exemptions.

         23                 And this process, as Edith said,

         24  powerful real estate and business interests control

         25  the process, and they got their concessions.  We
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          2  expect the Council to uphold the public's interest

          3  and your constituents' interest.  Close the

          4  loopholes. There should be no impediment to the City

          5  having the best possible accessible building code

          6  law in new construction.

          7                 I want to say two recent things have

          8  happened that give me hope.  Today's New York Times,

          9  I have to say for 17 years our City's Department of

         10  Parks and Recreation ignored much of its mandates

         11  under the ADA.  When Alan Hevesi came out with his

         12  report in December of 2005, and I have to say it was

         13  the Parks Committee Chair, Helen Foster, who pushed

         14  the Parks Department, and lo and behold, we have now

         15  mats.  Finally people can get to the waterfront, low

         16  tech, not costly, but suddenly we're equal among

         17  equals.  It can happen everywhere.

         18                 The City Council a couple of years

         19  ago when the City actually after September 11th was

         20  financing to the tune of several hundred million

         21  dollars creating piers and terminals to create a

         22  ferry service for New York City, that process is

         23  continuing.  Not only ferry service to New Jersey

         24  when the Path was knocked out, but ferry service now

         25  to all the boroughs in order to ferry people to and
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          2  from these grand developments.

          3                 At the time, City DOT was not

          4  building in accessibility.  Margarita Lopez filed

          5  her ferry bill.  There was enormous resistance from

          6  City Hall, DOT, Economic Development Corporation and

          7  the industry, and I would even say, sadly, in the

          8  City Council.  The bill finally passed in 2005, and

          9  so interesting a number of us had an opportunity to

         10  meet with DOT, Economic Development Corporation in

         11  their offices and with maritime and ocean architects

         12  and engineers and suddenly there is no problem.

         13  Opposition just melted away.

         14                 I have to say New York waterways is

         15  thriving, and I would urge Council pass a good law.

         16  Require the optimum accessibility, new construction

         17  right off the drawing board.  It can be done, and

         18  make New York City the most accessible City in the

         19  country.  We set the pace before.  We were indeed

         20  the model in several parts of the Americans with

         21  Disabilities Act, and for the Federal Fair Housing

         22  Act.  Do it again.  We don't have to accept a less

         23  than optimum building code.  Thank you.

         24                 What I passed on to the Committee,

         25  and I only had one copy, actually, it's a very
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          2  stunning example how the 1968 Code weakened some of

          3  the fire safety components of the 1938 code.  For

          4  example, Empire State Building at nine stairwells,

          5  World Trade Center was built with three.  It didn't

          6  have any fire towers, so the smoke followed people

          7  into the stairwells.  Read that article. It's a

          8  stunning example how history tends to repeat itself

          9  unfortunately.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Thank you.

         11                 MR. SHOTKIN:  I would just like to

         12  start my remarks by thanking Councilman Robert

         13  Action Jackson for actually being here.  See, City

         14  Council messages do get through.  My testimony

         15  today, good afternoon, Chairman Dilan and Members of

         16  the Committee will deal with Intro --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  You have to state

         18  your name for the record.

         19                 MR. SHOTKIN:  I'm sorry.  My name is

         20  Matt Shotkin, and I'm representing Disabled in

         21  Action.  My testimony today will deal with Intro

         22  578-A and certain sections of it as proposed by

         23  Dennis Boyd of the New York Lawyers for the Public

         24  Interest and so neatly revised by Edith Prentiss

         25  sitting right next to me.
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          2                 My testimony today, as I said, will

          3  deal with Intro Law 578, Sections 1103 to 1110 and

          4  Section E107.2 on tactical signage.

          5                 Intro 578-A of the Building Code

          6  should not be rushed.  There are still some things

          7  that need fixing.  For example, employee work areas

          8  that are intended to be used as residences,

          9  equipment spaces and connected spaces.  The

         10  Department of Buildings has to determine when an

         11  elevator service in a work area is provided for the

         12  sole purpose of complying with Sections 11.07.7.1 of

         13  the Building Codes, as well as Sections 11.07.7.3

         14  for type B units.

         15                 New units of housing are being built.

         16    In order to gain accessibility of ground floor

         17  units in smaller R3's, which are very problematic,

         18  very narrow passageways should not be exempt from

         19  accessibility.  They're just too narrow.

         20                 As I stated in my last testimony here

         21  last week, disabled bathrooms in apartment buildings

         22  have to be widened, and the actual doorways and the

         23  toilet seats lowered.  All bathrooms have to follow

         24  the requirements of Appendix P unless a unit that's

         25  built only as one Type A bathroom for a mobility
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          2  impaired parent. Within ten days of the date that

          3  the request is made by a person with a physical

          4  disability, counter tops in all kitchens must be

          5  adjusted or replaced at the time that the physically

          6  disabled person takes over the unit.

          7                 Currently, all laundry equipment and

          8  common areas that are two occupancies have to have

          9  accessible controls.

         10                 Thirty- six inch wide stairways, in

         11  addition to ramps, that was already mentioned by

         12  Raphael Rivas, should be allowed for internal

         13  passage between floors in multi- level dwellings.

         14                 Sunken and raised floors are

         15  currently only allowed if connected by an accessible

         16  route, usually a ramp.  Areas smaller than a minimum

         17  area of 80 square feet, or less than eight feet in

         18  both dimensions, aren't accessible.  However, there

         19  is an exception in the accessible route mandate

         20  that's made and allowed for in the proposed code for

         21  roof terraces above residential units, Section

         22  11.07.4.

         23                 There has to be a requirement in the

         24  draft code that all service entrances have to be

         25  accessible.  Holding cells and visiting areas in
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          2  court rooms still need to have only one accessible

          3  element or cell of each type for people that have

          4  various limitations, as well as lifts for accessible

          5  routes for judges, jurors, witnesses, et cetera.

          6                 Tactile signs have to be limited.

          7  There is also no signage required for single parking

          8  spaces, and there really needs to be some sort of

          9  signage in place regarding that.  Thanks for the

         10  opportunity to testify today.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Thank you, and I

         12  believe Council Member Jackson has something he'd

         13  like to say or has a question.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  First, let

         15  me thank you my constituents Edith and Anne and this

         16  other gentleman for coming in and giving testimony.

         17                 My question that I have is concerning

         18  the committees or subcommittees that have been

         19  established.  Are members of the disability

         20  community or members of wheelchairs users involved

         21  in that, and have you or organizations that you

         22  represent had input into this particular matter, and

         23  were they truly considered?

         24                 MS. PRENTISS:  Dennis Board

         25  (phonetic) represented us.  He is a lawyer from the
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          2  New York Lawyers for Public Interest. He has been a

          3  member of the committee process, but the issues I'm

          4  raising are not specific issues.  It's more of a

          5  philosophical viewing, and the issue that Local Law

          6  58 was never really enforced or implemented brings

          7  our concern over the fact that we're building a

          8  model law, which seems to be ameliorating some of

          9  those protections we've had previously.  So the

         10  question is basically if Buildings did such an

         11  ineffectual job of protecting us under 58, how will

         12  they do now?

         13                 MR. SHOTKIN:  May I just add, Council

         14  Member Jackson, that we have had past meetings

         15  before these hearings on the building codes with the

         16  Disabilities Network of New York City, and the

         17  aforementioned Mr. Boyd was present at those

         18  meetings.

         19                 MS. EMERMAN:  There were actually

         20  three representatives with voting privileges on the

         21  accessibility committee.  One other person who

         22  actually helped to write Local Law 58, he was a

         23  consultant.  He didn't have a voting right.  The

         24  committees were overwhelmed.  I think it was three

         25  people to 16 to 20 representing other interests like
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          2  the Real Estate Board of New York, Building and

          3  Owners Association, so every point in the code

          4  needed a vote.  And the process was in many ways

          5  secret excluded community.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  What do you

          7  mean by that? I get the impression that the process

          8  is open and democratic.  If, in fact, every point

          9  has to be voted on, what do you mean?

         10                 MS. EMERMAN:  That's right, but the

         11  vote overwhelmingly went in the direction of limited

         12  access.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Because of

         14  the interest of the other parties?

         15                 MS. EMERMAN:  Because of the

         16  interests who were, who were fighting over inches

         17  and their bottom line, to be frank.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  You mean the

         19  cost factor of developers or builders or what have

         20  you?

         21                 MS. EMERMAN:  Well, the cost factor

         22  from the drawing board is not that great.  It's more

         23  like a quarter of one percent of cost of building an

         24  apartment, for example.  I think we're talking about

         25  maximizing profits and a resistance.  Whatever space

                                                            125

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDING

          2  you can create to sell or rent enhances your profit,

          3  and you end up with, in the case of the 1968 code,

          4  fewer staircases, less wide staircases.  I mean,

          5  that was the tension in the process.

          6                 I happen, and I said this week, I

          7  happened to sit on two meetings.  I crashed, nobody

          8  threw me out.  At the time of the voting I

          9  experienced an astounding phenomenon.  As people, as

         10  human beings, they said, you know, representatives

         11  of the industry, as a person, I want to vote with

         12  the advocates, but I know my organization, co-op,

         13  condos, want me to vote this way, and they would.

         14  So the process was difficult, and I think it was set

         15  up that way to have a certain outcome, a predictable

         16  outcome, and the industry went out.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Now with

         18  respect to, I think I heard you testify that the, I

         19  think you said Local Law 58, Edith, is that correct?

         20    That this proposed, the current code that we're

         21  addressing now would be weaker than Local Law 58?

         22                 MS. PRENTISS:  Yes, in some aspects.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  And would it

         24  improve it in other aspects?

         25                 MS. EMERMAN:  Yes, there's definitely
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          2   -- much has happened in the 19 years since I've

          3  been here on materials, technology, production, but

          4  the tension remains the same.  There is definitely

          5  an improvement in those arenas.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Well, why

          7  would we want to weaken, I'm just talking overall,

          8  why would we want to weaken an existing law if, in

          9  fact, we're trying to adopt a model code that would

         10  be a type of model for people to emulate all over

         11  the country, to weaken current existing law?

         12                 MS. PRENTISS:  I think that we have

         13  to look at -- I would like to just use one specific

         14  new building as an illustration, Time Warner

         15  Building.  Okay, there it is, huge, big, et cetera.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Where is

         17  that?

         18                 MS. PRENTISS:  It's Columbus Circle.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Right,

         20  that's what I thought.

         21                 MS. PRENTISS:  With Coliseum, Capeout

         22  (phonetic) and It's Up (phonetic), that's where

         23  people think there's an elevator to the subway, and

         24  there's only one to the mezzanine because the MTA

         25  hasn't built their part yet.
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          2                 Getting them to meet the requirements

          3  that exist at the time they were built is an ongoing

          4  battle.  Gail has been very instrumental in getting

          5  push plates put on for us.  The weights of those

          6  doors are regulated by housing law currently.  If

          7  you go and try to open those doors, they don't meet

          8  the code.  They don't meet pushing the button.  They

          9  don't meet various things.  The elevator in this

         10  building does not meet current code, slam, bam, and

         11  you know, these are the issues, so if we're not

         12  making things comply with the current code, and

         13  we're throwing out the baby with the bath water, in

         14  effect, we're bringing in this new code, which makes

         15  us all very uncomfortable because, as Anne said,

         16  there are major loopholes.  There are major issues.

         17  The exemption process is going to increase

         18  geometrically.  I mean, it's going to open up the

         19  situation so widely, that you're, in effect, making

         20  the person who's got the financial interest, the one

         21  who actually says, yes, we're doing the right thing,

         22  and the question is, they're not, or they may not

         23  be.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Or the right

         25  thing for whom.
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          2                 MS. PRENTISS:  Exactly.  It's

          3  certainly not the right thing for us to be consumers

          4  or residents.  I mean, one of the more interesting

          5  pieces is when you talk about the modification, the

          6  adaptations to be done in a residential unit if an

          7  individual requests these modifications, the

          8  combinations.

          9                 If it's going to cost the landlord

         10  money to go back in and do a modification because

         11  I'm going to move in, how likely do you think it is

         12  that I'm going to get a lease there?  It's going to

         13  cost this landlord more money.  Why not look at it

         14  right from the beginning?  As Anne said, the cost

         15  for a lot of these issues is very inexpensive.  We

         16  are talking about a blindness, in effect.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  You're here.

         18    You're discussing the Intro.  You're giving your

         19  input, and you're saying that the people that need

         20  access were given representation on these

         21  committees, but because of the committees' structure

         22  or the make up or the players, the numbers of

         23  people, you may be heard in the discussion, they

         24  make some changes, but overall, you know that you --

         25  I don't want to put words in your mouth, but can you
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          2  win on this situation?

          3                 MS. PRENTISS:  No, there's no

          4  winning.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  But you said

          6  that certain things in there have been improved as a

          7  result of the discussions that you've had.

          8                 MS. PRENTISS:  But we don't know that

          9  they'll be implemented.

         10                 MS. EMERMAN:  Actually, no.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  They may be

         12  put on paper, but you don't know if they'll be

         13  implemented, is that what you're saying?

         14                 MS. EMERMAN:  Certainly, there's a

         15  lot about the code I cannot --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Push the mic

         17  over to her, Edith, a little bit please, to Anne.

         18                 MS. EMERMAN:  The accessible

         19  components of it have, as I said, more exceptions

         20  and exemptions, and it leaves more up to the

         21  discretion of the developer to come up with what he

         22  or she perceives as an alternative.  The definitions

         23  in the code are very loose and should be nailed

         24  down.

         25                 Essentially, the process has gone
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          2  through this far, and now our only strength is to

          3  look to the Council and say, look at the 24 points

          4  where we consider less accessibility than the

          5  current code and make changes.  When you're dealing

          6  with new construction, you can do this from the

          7  drawing board.  It's going to be a heck of a lot

          8  more costly to do this after the fact, retrofitting.

          9

         10                 The one thing that Edith mentioned

         11  and that's the visitability, the idea of exempting

         12  altogether one and two- family homes, which the New

         13  York Partnership has been putting up for the last

         14  25, 30 years with public money.  These are exempt,

         15  and we're looking for a future of people who may

         16  want to age in place and have that opportunity to

         17  stay put and to have a bathroom they can use, an

         18  entrance that gets them in and out, and an

         19  accessible route around the house where they can get

         20  through with a walker or a wheelchair.  We're

         21  looking for the future, and there's no reason in new

         22  construction to exempt anything.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  If somebody's

         24  going to respond, it needs to be responded into the

         25  mic.
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          2                 MS. PRENTISS:  This is our present.

          3  We talk about the future.  This is our present.  On

          4  a daily basis we cannot participate in family

          5  events.  How many events have you as candidates had

          6  an inaccessible venue because it's in someone's

          7  house?  Offices, et cetera.  We need to be included

          8  in the process. We need to be full and productive

          9  members of society.  Without protections in the

         10  built environment, we will not be those things. I

         11  think it is at the detriment of society to, in

         12  effect, ignore a considerable population.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  A final

         14  question, Mr. Chair.  You have the Department of

         15  Buildings has put forth the building codes and

         16  saying that this is going through a collaborative

         17  process with all state coders involved.  It's very,

         18  very technical.  Reading 249.C5AB of so and so

         19  article what you and so forth, it's lost me already

         20  when you first started the first two numbers.  It's

         21  so much that not even -- we had the books in front

         22  of us the other day.  They were two huge binders, so

         23  now it's on the laptop and you have to scroll down

         24  if you want to see 250 pages.

         25                 You're saying now you're looking to
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          2  the City Council.  Quite frankly, let's be quite

          3  about it, members of the City Council have not been

          4  a part of this process, and they don't know.  They

          5  don't know, and for them to say, well, I'm going to

          6  stand up and propose this change when they haven't

          7  been through anything whatsoever, and they hear your

          8  comments, or they hear other people's comments, and

          9  to realistically think that the Council is going to

         10   -- these are my words, they're not your words, you

         11  know, save the day, isn't that a little unrealistic?

         12                 MS. EMERMAN:  I'm not asking you to

         13  save the day. I'm asking you to be the leaders, the

         14  leader to open up a process by which we all, as

         15  citizens of New York City, participate.  I would

         16  like to see ongoing series of public information and

         17  educations.  I agree with you.  I happen to feel the

         18  numbers are meant to make us all go, oh no, oh no,

         19  leave me alone.

         20                 I think that it could be in a much

         21  less arduous manner, but I think that it is part of

         22  the mystification of the process.  I think there

         23  needs to be an ongoing series of public sessions,

         24  and I would hope that the Buildings Department would

         25  be our technical assistants.  I would hope that the
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          2  universities would step in and offer their

          3  expertise.  We have had in Northern Manhattan the

          4  CUNY study looking at the community development.  I

          5  think that's the situation similar.

          6                 I think all New Yorkers have to have

          7  an opportunity to understand what's going on here,

          8  what's being proposed because the reality is that

          9  this decision, this new code, even if it's only in

         10  this format for three years, a lot is going to go up

         11  in three years.

         12                 As soon as you change the law, let's

         13  remember when the no smoking came into restaurants,

         14  suddenly everyone cut one seat below that number so

         15  they could keep their smoking section. If you look

         16  phone booths, you have four phone booths in a row,

         17  you have to have one accessible one.  Have you ever

         18  seen more than three phone booths together lately?

         19  No, it's their way of undermining the letter of law.

         20    I think the development of this building code will

         21  just open up a new growth industry to undermine it.

         22                 MR. SHOTKIN:  I would also urge the

         23  Committee Council legally to try to, shall I say,

         24  close some of the loopholes that are in the existing

         25  Building Code.  Council Member Jackson, you don't
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          2  know how many constant battles we were in a certain

          3  conference room with Dennis Boyd over the actual

          4  wording of the actual code.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Well, let me

          6  thank you for coming in, and I appreciate the

          7  dialogue.  You have helped to educate me about some

          8  of the difficulties in dealing with this particular

          9  matter.  Mind you, I sit on the Housing and

         10  Buildings Committee, and as you know, if you don't

         11  know, most of the time I sit through most of all the

         12  committee hearings in order to hear what the public

         13  has to say and advocates have to say because I think

         14  that's extremely important, and that's part of doing

         15  my job as a member of the City Council.  Let me

         16  thank you for coming in. Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN:  Thank you,

         18  Council Member Jackson.  I'm just going to briefly

         19  add that this is the second time that this group has

         20  had to testify on this item.  I would just like to

         21  say that they should be in contact with the

         22  Department of Buildings to address some of these

         23  concerns as we go forward, apart from the Building

         24  Code, whether it be by local low or rules

         25  promulgated by the Department of Buildings.  That's
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          2  just for your information.

          3                 At this point, this will close the

          4  public hearing on the Buildings Code.  I just have

          5  some items that I have to announce that have been

          6  submitted to the Committee for the record.

          7                 We've received testimony from Mr.

          8  Patrick Callahan. He's a University Senator of

          9  Public Health at Columbia University, and he's

         10  submitted testimony in favor of Intro No. 4, as well

         11  as a Mr. Kenneth Stewart from the Metropolitan

         12  Council on Low Vision Individuals.  He submitted

         13  testimony for the record, as well as the Community

         14  Housing Improvement Program, otherwise known as

         15  CHIP. They've submitted testimony in support of

         16  Intro 550-A.

         17                 At this point, this will conclude

         18  this hearing.  All items on today's calendar are

         19  laid over.  The next Committee Hearing for the

         20  Housing and Buildings Committee will be June 27th at

         21  10:00 a.m.

         22                 (Hearing concluded at 1:21 p.m.)

         23
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